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Explanatory Note
 

On April 5, 2018, Sun Hydraulics Corporation (“Sun”) filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (“Original Report”) to report the
completion of its acquisition of all of the outstanding equity interests of Polyusus Lux IV S.à.r.l., a Luxembourg limited liability company
(“Polyusus Lux IV”), the owner of 100% of the share capital of Faster S.p.A., an Italian joint stock company (“Faster”). By this amendment
No. 1 to the Original Report, Sun is amending Item 9.01 thereof to include the required financial statements and pro forma financial
information.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired.
 
The audited consolidated statements of financial position of Faster as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the audited

consolidated statements of comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the years ending December 31,
2017, 2016 and 2015, and the notes thereto are filed as exhibit 99.1 to this Form 8-K/A.  

Pursuant to a letter dated February 13, 2018, from the staff of the Division of Corporation Finance of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the staff agreed to permit Sun to substitute the audited financial statements for Faster in lieu of audited financial statements
for its parent company, Polyusus Luv IV to satisfy the requirements of Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X.

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.
 
The unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations of Sun

Hydraulics Corporation as of and for the year ended December 30, 2017, and the notes thereto, are filed as Exhibit 99.2 to this Form 8-
K/A.  

(d) Exhibits.

      23.1 Consent of Independent Auditors

      99.1 Audited consolidated statements of financial position of Faster S.p.A. as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the years ending
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes thereto.

      99.2 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements of Sun Hydraulics Corporation as of and for the year ended
December 30, 2017.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 
  SUN HYDRAULICS CORPORATION
    
Dated:  June 20, 2018  By: /s/ Tricia L. Fulton
   Tricia L. Fulton

   
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 23.1

 
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

 
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-30801, 333-83269, 333-62816, 333-66008,
333-119367, 333-124174, 333-158245, 333-177448, and 333-184840 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement No. 333 222760
on Form S-3 of our report relating to the financial statements of Faster S.p.A. dated June 19, 2018, appearing in this Current
Report on Form 8-K of Sun Hydraulics Corporation.

 
DELOITTE & TOUCHE S.p.A.

 
Andrea Restelli
Partner
 
Bergamo, Italy

June 19, 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of
Faster S.p.A.
 
 
Report on the financial statements
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Faster S.p.A. and its subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016
and 2015, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
 
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
 
Auditors' Responsibility
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
 
Opinion
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Faster S.p.A. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
 
 
DELOITTE & TOUCHE S.p.A.
 

Andrea Restelli
Partner
 
 
Bergamo, Italy
June 19, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Consolidated Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December (Euro)
 
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2015  2016  2017  Note

           
Revenue  89,428,708   90,644,712   106,915,214  1
Cost of goods sold – materials and processes  48,803,766   47,187,953   56,041,779  2
Cost of goods sold – depreciation, amortisation & writedowns  9,103,850   9,174,245   9,190,507  3
Gross margin  31,521,092   34,282,514   41,682,928   
Distribution costs  6,019,799   6,372,863   7,663,664  4
Selling costs  4,760,995   5,720,708   5,471,477  5
Administrative and staff costs  6,220,364   6,094,122   8,383,357  6
Research & development costs  1,362,786   1,447,801   1,671,064  7
Other operating income (-) and expenses (+)  (628,775 )  (246,484 )  (121,454 ) 8
EBIT  13,785,923   14,893,504   18,614,820   
- Financial income  (25,788 )  (11,629 )  (12,707 ) 9
+ Financial expenses  5,472,202   5,424,956   5,080,486  10
Other financial income (-) and expenses (+)  2,112,733   (138,811 )  (2,419,379 ) 11
EBT  6,226,776   9,618,988   15,966,420   
Taxation  1,860,196   1,709,481   4,958,469  12
Net profit from continuing operations  4,366,580   7,909,507   11,007,951   
Net profit for the year  4,366,580   7,909,507   11,007,951   
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (net of income tax)           
A)  Items that may be recycled through P&L in future periods           
Exchange difference from translation of foreign operations  471,895   (18,338 )  (627,199 ) 13
A)  Items that will not be recycled through P&L in future periods           
Actuarial gains and (losses)  71,349   (24,418 )  19,084  13
Deferred taxes  (19,621 )  5,860   (4,580 ) 13
Subtotal other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  523,623   (36,896 )  (612,695 )  
Total Comprehensive income for the year  4,890,203   7,872,611   10,395,256   
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December (Euro)
 
Assets 2016  2017  Note
Property, plant and equipment  8,643,843   9,590,980  14
Goodwill  119,559,236   119,559,236  15
Trademarks  28,919,960   25,188,352  16
Other intangible assets  38,210,505   36,049,320  17
Other financial assets  538,336   708,718  18
Deferred tax assets  3,900,635   3,650,730  12
Non-current assets  199,772,515   194,747,336   
Inventory  25,747,865   24,831,878  19
Trade receivables  14,179,187   18,603,175  20/32
Financial instruments and other financial assets  6,864   1,354,103  21/32
Tax receivables  1,176,454   1,902,185  12
Other assets  402,919   404,858  22
Cash and cash equivalents  8,732,695   18,943,308  23
Current assets  50,245,984   66,039,507   
Total Assets  250,018,499   260,786,843   

        
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 2016  2017   
Share capital  9,189,405   9,189,405  24
Reserve  111,953,454   119,250,233  24
Net profit  for the year  7,909,507   11,007,951  24
Shareholders’ equity  129,052,366   139,447,589   
Bank borrowing and debt towards other lenders  76,742,439   67,728,187  25/32
Payables to leasing companies  1,594,967   1,518,762  26/32
Financial instruments and other financial liabilities  43,966  -  27/32
Employee benefits  1,080,172   1,074,601  28
Deferred tax liabilities  18,485,371   17,190,381  12
Non-current liabilities  97,946,915   87,511,931   
Bank borrowing and debt towards other lenders  5,728,142   5,270,568  25/32
Payables to leasing companies  797,418   988,407  26/32
Financial instruments and other financial liabilities  861,259  -  27/32
Tax payables  980,362   2,684,997  12
Provisions  422,400   342,806  29
Other liabilities  4,057,993   6,594,730  30
Trade payables  10,171,644   17,945,815  31
Current liabilities  23,019,218   33,827,323   
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  250,018,499   260,786,843   
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December (Euro)
 

 2015  2016  2017  
CURRENT OPERATING ACTIVITIES          

          
Net profit for the year  4,366,580   7,909,507   11,007,951  

          
Taxes recorded in the income statement  1,860,196   1,709,481   4,958,469  
Net financial expenses recorded in the income statement  5,446,414   4,619,439   2,626,294  
Change in fair value  of derivatives  748,132   408,958   14,790  
Writedown of inventory  833,590   (468,623 )  62,166  
Allocation /Utilization of provisions  (348,686 )  (230,094 )  (39,594 )
Allocations to provisions for doubtful accounts  (277,463 )  82,541   13,994  
Exchange gains/losses  3,281,407   1,334,141   (739,887 )
Gains/Losses on disposals  (14,266 )  (8,374 )  (83,051 )
Expenses for operations with share based payments on cash basis  57,423   113,817   1,641,926  
Amortization / Write-offs / impairment intangible assets  6,244,136   6,310,700   6,259,752  
Depreciation / Write-offs / impairment tangible assets  2,859,714   2,863,545   2,930,755  
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in working capital  25,057,177   24,645,038   28,653,565  

          
Trade receivables  (2,693,828 )  (605,003 )  (4,445,298 )
Tax receivables  (493,384 )  354,575   (725,731 )
Trade payables  (1,417,599 )  (2,511,938 )  7,734,171  
Employee benefits  (80,133 )  21,150   (5,571 )
Taxes paid  (6,079,273 )  (4,132,218 )  (4,298,919 )
Inventory  (457,199 )  (1,175,343 )  853,821  
Other payables and liabilities  660,658   352,673   282,083  
Other receivables and assets  (155,020 )  64,773   (1,939 )
Net cash used by operating activities  14,341,399   17,013,707   28,046,182  
          
INVESTING ACTIVITIES          

          
Intangible assets  (645,502 )  (499,561 )  (366,959 )
Tangible assets  (1,457,810 )  (2,106,424 )  (2,598,652 )
Net cash used by investing activities  (2,103,312 )  (2,605,985 )  (2,965,611 )

          
FINANCING ACTIVITIES          

          
Repayment of bank borrowings  (4,129,008 )  (4,115,579 )  (8,724,623 )
Financial expenses paid  (5,352,541 )  (5,439,611 )  (5,063,930 )
Lease instalments paid  (802,899 )  (919,223 )  (1,081,405 )
Net cash used by financing activities  (10,284,448 )  (10,474,413 )  (14,869,958 )

          
          

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  1,953,639   3,933,309   10,210,613  
          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT START OF YEAR  2,845,747   4,799,386   8,732,695  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  4,799,386   8,732,695   18,943,308
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 December 2015 (Euro)
 

X X X X Reserve for
other

comprehensive
income

X X Total
shareholders’

equity
attributable to

the parent
company

shareholders

Total share-
holders’ equity

X Share capital Share premium
reserve

Other reserves
and Retained

earnings

Translation
reserve

IAS 19 Net profit
pertaining to the

Group

X X

         
Balance at 31 December 2014     18,435,448    103,914,552          490,961        (387,444)          (79,103)     (6,084,856)    116,289,558    116,289,558

         
         

Allocation of prior year net
profit(loss)

                        -                          -         (6,084,856)                         -                          -            6,084,856                  -                   -  

                         -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                   -                   -  
other movements        (9,246,043)      (85,528,696) 94,774,739                         -                          -                          -  - -

         
Total net comprehensive income for

the year
                 -                   -                   (2)          471,895            51,728       4,366,580       4,890,201       4,890,201

Of which:                         -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                   -                   -  
- changes during year in other

comprehensive income
                        -                          -                          -               471,895                51,728                         -          523,623                  -  

- net profit for year                         -                          -                          -                          -                          -            4,366,580       4,366,580                  -  

-Rounding                         -                          -                        (2)                         -                          -                          -                   (2)                  -  

         
Balance at 31 December 2015       9,189,405     18,385,856     89,180,842            84,451          (27,375)       4,366,580     121,179,759     121,179,759

         
Other movements: the amounts represented above are due to the statutory merger between Faster S.p.A. (incorporating company) and Polyusus
Italia S.p.a. (incorporated company) that took place in 2015. Other movements are representative of the share capital and the share premium
reserve of Polyusus Italia S.p.A.
 
 

Page 6 of 53
 



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Euro)
 

X X X X Reserve for
other

comprehensive
income

X X Total shareholders’
equity attributable

to the parent
company

shareholders

Total share-
holders’ equity

X Share capital Share premium
reserve

Other reserves
and Retained

earnings

Translation
reserve

IAS 19 Net profit
pertaining to

the Group

X X

         
Balance at 31 December 2015       9,189,405     18,385,856     89,180,842            84,451          (27,375)       4,666,580     121,179,759     121,179,759

         

         
Allocation of prior year net

profit(loss)
                        -                          -           4,366,580                         -                          -        (4,666,580)                  -                   -  

                         -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                   -                   -  
         

Total net comprehensive income for
the year

                 -                   -                   -           (18,338)          (18,562)       7,909,507       7,872,607       7,872,607

Of which:         
- changes during year in other

comprehensive income
                        -                          -                          -               (18,338)            (18,562)                         -           (36,900)                  -  

- net profit for year                         -                          -                          -                          -                          -           7,909,507       7,909,507                  -  

         
Balance at 31 December 2016       9,189,405     18,385,856     93,547,422            66,113          (45,937)       7,909,507    129,052,366    129,052,366
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Euro)
 

X X X X Reserve for
other

comprehensive
income

X X Total shareholders’
equity attributable

to the parent
company

shareholders

Total share-
holders’ equity

X Share capital Share premium
reserve

Other reserves
and Retained

earnings

Translation
reserve

IAS 19 Net profit
pertaining to

the Group

X X

         
Balance at 31 December 2016       9,189,405     18,385,856     93,547,422            66,113          (45,937)       7,909,507    129,052,366    129,052,366

         
         

Allocation of prior year net
profit(loss)

                        -                          -             7,909,507                         -                          -            (7,909,507)                  -                   -  

         
         

Total net comprehensive income for
the year

                 -                   -                   (1)        (627,199)            14,472      11,007,951     10,395,223     10,395,223

Of which:                         -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                   -                   -  
- changes during year in others

comprehensive income
                        -                          -                          -               (627,199)                 14,472                         -         (612,727)                  -  

- net profit for year                         -                          -                          -                          -                          -         11,007,951      11,007,951                  -  
-Rounding                         -                          -                        (1)                         -                          -                          -                   (1)                  -  

         
Balance at 31 December 2017       9,189,405     18,385,856    101,456,928        (561,086)          (31,465)      11,007,951    139,447,589    139,447,589

         
 
 
 

Page 8 of 53
 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

General information, scope of consolidation and accounting policies
 

General information, statement of compliance and basis of preparation
 

Faster S.p.A. (“Faster” or “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries consEtute the Faster Group (“Faster Group”). Parent Company Faster S.p.A.
has its registered office in Via Ludovico Ariosto 7 – Rivolta d’Adda (CR).

 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the InternaEonal Financial ReporEng Standards (IFRS) issued
by the InternaEonal AccounEng Standards Board (IASB). All references to IFRS also include all current InternaEonal AccounEng Standards
(IAS).

 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Board of Directors believes there are no significant doubts over
the Group’s ability to operate as a going concern for the next 12 months.

 
Main accounting policies

 
Application of new and amended International Financial Reporting Standards
 
This note contains details of recent amendments and interpretaEons of IFRS, as well as the issue of new accounEng standards. These events
have been divided into three categories for the convenience of readers.

 
The following accounBng standards, amendments and IFRS interpretaBons were applied by the Group for the first Bme from 1 January
2017:
 

 • Amendments to IAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative” (published on 29 January 2016): the document aims to provide certain clarificaEon
to improve disclosures provided to users of financial statements about an enEty’s financial acEviEes (assets and liabiliEes). In
parEcular, the amendments require that enEEes shall provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabiliEes arising from financing acEviEes. See Note 25 (“Bank Borrowings and Debt Towards Other Lenders (current
and non-current)”) for the Company’s reconciliaEon of financing cash flows to current year debt balances and Note 26
(“Payables to Leasing Companies (current and non-current)”).

 

 
AccounBng standards, amendments and IFRS and IFRIC interpretaBons endorsed by the European Union, not applicable on an obligatory
basis and not adopted in advance as at 31 December 2017
 
The Group has not applied the following new and amended Standards which have been issued but are not yet in force.
 

 • IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers (published on 28 May 2014 and subsequently completed by amendments
published on 12 April 2016) is desEned to replace IAS 18 – Revenue and IAS 11 – Construc�on Contracts, as well as
interpretaEons IFRIC 13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 – Agreements for the Construc�on of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 –
Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 – Revenues-Barter Transac�ons Involving Adver�sing Services. The standard
introduces a new model of revenue recogniEon that will apply to all contracts signed with clients except for those that fall within
the scope of applicaEon of other IAS/IFRS, such as finance leases, insurance contracts and financial instruments.  The key steps in
revenue recognition under the new model are:

 

 
 - Identify the contract with the customer;
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 - Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
 - Determine the price;
 - Allocate the price to the performance obligations in the contract;
 - Recognize revenue when each performance obligation is fulfilled.

 
The standard is applicable from 1 January 2018. The amendments to the IFRS 15, Clarifica�ons to IFRIC 15 – Revenues from
Contracts with Customers have been adopted by the European Union on 6 November 2017. The Directors expect that applicaEon
of IFRS 15 will not have a significant impact on the amounts recorded as revenue and on the related disclosures reported in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is not possible to make a reasonable esEmate of the effects unEl the Group
has completed a detailed analysis of contracts with customers. The Group has completed a preliminary analysis and no impact has
been detected.
 

 • Final version of IFRS 9 – Financial instruments (published on 24 July 2014). The document includes the results of the IASB
project with a view of replacing IAS 39:

 

 
 - The standard introduces new criteria for the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities;
 - With regard to the impairment model, the new standard requires that credit losses should be estimated based on the

expected losses model (rather than the incurred losses model used by IAS 39), using supportable information, available
without any expense or unreasonable efforts and including historical, current and forecast information;

 - the standard introduces a new hedge accounting model (increase in the types of transaction eligible for hedge
accounting, change of accounting method for forward contracts and options when included in a hedge accounting
relationship, changes to the effectiveness test).
 

The new standard must be applied from annual accounEng periods commencing on or aNer 1 January 2018. The Directors expect
applicaEon of IFRS 9 to have a significant impact on amounts and disclosures reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not possible to provide a reasonable esEmate of the effects unEl the Group has completed a detailed
analysis.
Indeed, the Group has not completed a detailed analysis in order to understand if they have any impact arising from this standard
yet, but the enEty could have an impact already detected, not significant, on the credit losses esEmated based on the expected
losses model.
 

 • IFRS 16 – Leases (published on 13 January 2016), is desEned to replace IAS 17 – Leases and interpretaEons IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Opera�ng Leases—Incen�ves and SIC-27 Evalua�ng the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

 

 
The new standard provides a new definiEon of lease and introduces a criterion based on control of an asset (right of use) to
disEnguish lease agreements from contracts for services.  The discriminaEng characterisEcs are: the idenEficaEon of the asset, the
right to replace the asset, the right to obtain substanEally all economic benefits from use of the asset and the right to direct the
use of the asset under the contract.
 
The standard establishes a single model for the recogniEon and measurement of lease agreements by the lessee. It provides for
the recogniEon of the leased asset – including under an operaEng lease – as an asset while also recognizing a financial liability. It
also offers the possibility of not recognizing as leases contracts relating to “low-value assets” and leases with a duraEon of less than
or equal to 12 months. In contrast, the Standard does not introduce any significant changes for lessors.
The standard is applicable from 1 January 2019 but early applicaEon is permiOed, only for companies which applied in advance
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Directors expect that applicaEon of IFRS 16 could have a significant effect on
the accounting treatment of lease contracts and on the related disclosures in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 
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Basis of preparation
 

Reporting format adopted
 
The Group provides the following statements in its consolidated financial statements:
 

 • the statement of comprehensive income which reports costs using a classificaEon based on their desEnaEon and highlights
intermediate results;

 

 • the statement of financial posiEon which shows separately non-current and current assets and non-current and current
liabilities;

 

 • the statement of cash flows which reports cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method;  
 • statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity prepared in accordance with IAS 1;  

 
The consolidated financial statements and all amounts in the Notes are expressed in Euro (the Group’s funcEonal currency), unless otherwise
stated.

 
Information on the Notes
 
The Notes directly relating to line items in the statement of comprehensive income and in the statement of financial position are ordered
numerically.
 
“Information on financial risks” (risk management, derivatives and sensitivity analysis) is included in Note 32.
 

Scope of consolidation and general consolidation principles
 
Preparation of the consolidated financial statements
 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is reached when the Parent
Company:
 

 • has power over the investee entity;
 • is exposed to variable returns resulting from its relationship with the investee entity;
 • can exercise its power over the investee entity to affect the amount of its returns.  

 
The Parent Company reviews the requirement of control over an enEty whenever facts and circumstances indicate that one or more of the
above factors has changed.
 
The enEEes are consolidated from the date on which the Parent Company obtains control. Meanwhile, they are deconsolidated from the
date on which the Parent Company ceases to exercise control.
 
Scope of consolidation
 
The scope of consolidation includes parent company Faster S.p.A. and the following subsidiaries of Faster S.p.A.:
 

 • FASTER INC - functional currency the “US Dollar”;
 • FASTER HYDRAULICS PVT. LTD – functional currency “Indian Rupee”;
 • FASTER DO BRASIL EQUIPAMENTOS HIDRAULICOS LTD – functional currency “Brazilian Real”;
 • FASTER HYDRAULICS (SHANGHAI) CO. LTD. – functional currency “Yuan”;
 • FASTER GERMANY GMBH – functional currency “Euro”;
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Consolidation principles
 
The consolidaEon is performed using the line-by-line method. The amounts in the Statement of Financial PosiEon and in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income reflect those reported by each Group company, as adjusted and reclassified, where necessary, to bring them into line
with IFRS and the classification criteria adopted across the Group.

 
Translation into Euro of statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position items denominated in foreign currency
 
The separate financial statements of each Group company are prepared in the currency of the primary economic area in which they operate
(funcEonal currency). For consolidated reporEng purposes, the financial statements of each foreign enEty are restated in Euro which is the
Parent’s functional currency and the reporting currency for the consolidated financial statements.
 
Financial statements expressed in foreign currency are translated into Euro as follows: assets and liabiliEes are translated at the reporEng
date spot rate, income statement items are translated at the average rate for the period. Shareholders’ equity items (both opening
shareholders’ equity and subsequent changes, including the net profit/loss for the period) are recorded at the historical exchange rates at the
date of the transacEon that affected shareholders’ equity. The difference between the amount so obtained and the amount obtained from
translaEon of the same items at current exchange rates is recorded in a specific shareholders’ equity capEon Etled “Reserve for translaEon
differences” (in relation to translation of financial statements).
 
The exchange rates applied for the translations described above are as follows:
 

Currency  Average rate for year
2015

➢  US Dollar  1.11
➢  Indian Rupee  71.18
➢  Brazilian Real  3.70
➢  Chinese Yuan (Renmimbi)  6.97

 
Currency 31/12/16 rate Average rate for year

2016
➢  US Dollar 1.05 1.11
➢  Indian Rupee 71.59 74.37
➢  Brazilian Real 3.43 3.86
➢  Chinese Yuan (Renmimbi) 7.32 7.35

 
Currency 31/12/17 rate Average rate for year

2017
➢  US Dollar 1.25 1.13
➢  Indian Rupee 76.61 73.53
➢  Brazilian Real 3.97 3.61
➢  Chinese Yuan (Renmimbi) 7.8 7.63

 
TransacEons in foreign currency are accounted for in the funcEonal currency of each enEty in the scope of consolidaEon, applying the
exchange rate in force at the transacEon date. The difference between that amount and the amount actually paid or received is recorded in
the income statement under financial income or expenses.
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In more detail, IAS 21 provides that:
 

 • Monetary amounts in foreign currency, consisEng of cash held and assets and liabiliEes to be received or paid are translated
using the reporting date exchange rate; the same procedure applies for financial receivables recorded under fixed assets;

 

 • Non-monetary amounts measured at historical cost in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate in force at the
transaction date;

 

 • Non-monetary amounts measured at fair value in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates in force when fair
value is determined or at the exchange rate at the time of measurement.

 

 
Specific accounting policies

 
Business combinations
 
Business combinations are transactions involving the acquisition of a business with the transfer of control.
 
The acquisiEon of a company or assets is accounted for using the acquisiEon method. The value of the business combinaEon is the total sum
of the transacEon date fair value of the assets and liabiliEes acquired, as well as conEngent liabiliEes assumed and equity instruments issued
at the transacEon date. AcquisiEon related expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. Assets, liabiliEes
and conEngent liabiliEes that meet the requirements of IFRS 3 “Business Combina�on” are recorded at fair value at the acquisition date,
except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”, which must be measured at fair value less costs to sell. Any posiEve difference between the acquisiEon cost and
the porEon of the fair value of assets, liabiliEes and conEngent liabiliEes idenEfiable upon the acquisiEon is recorded as Goodwill. Any
negative difference is recorded directly in the Income Statement.

 
Property, plant and equipment
 
Property, plant, machinery, industrial and commercial equipment and other assets (line item “Property, plant and equipment” which also
includes all other tangible assets with a long-term useful life) are recorded at acquisiEon or construcEon cost and stated net of accumulated
depreciation and any impairment. Cost includes any direct ancillary expenses.
 
Costs incurred aNer the iniEal purchase are only capitalized if they produce an increase in the future economic benefits of the related asset.
All other costs are recorded in the income statement when incurred.
Assets consisting of components – of significant amounts – with different useful lives are considered separately when calculating depreciation.
 
Maintenance expenses which lead to a significant, tangible increase in producEon capacity or which extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized.
Depreciation is determined on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. In accordance with IAS 36, the remaining
useful life of each asset is periodically reviewed in order to check it is still reasonable in light of any economic or technical deterioration.
 
The estimated useful lives used are as follows (in years):
 

➢Plant and machinery 6-7
➢Equipment and motor vehicles 4
➢Furniture and fittings 8-9
➢Loading /Unloading vehicles and electronic equipment 5
➢Lightweight construction and general plant 10
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Additions that have not yet been completed at the reporting date are classified under Assets in progress and are not yet depreciated.
 

Servicing equipment
 
Tools with a medium/long-term life cycle are included in property, plant and equipment in accordance with the provisions of IAS 16 on servicing
equipment.
 
They are depreciated using the rates applicable to “Equipment” which are considered to reflect their useful lives.

 
Assets held under finance leases
 
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group substanEally all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases.  On iniEal recogniEon, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to iniEal recogniEon, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounEng policy applicable to
that asset. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apporEoned between the finance expense and reducEon of the
outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

 
Goodwill
 
Goodwill represents the difference between the acquisition price and the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabiliEes of investee
companies and is recorded in intangible assets under “Goodwill”.
 
Goodwill is iniEally recorded at cost. In subsequent periods, as goodwill is an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life, it is not amorEzed
but tested for impairment at least annually or, more frequently, whenever  there is an indicator that the asset might have been impaired. It
order to test its value, the goodwill is allocated to the Cash GeneraEng Units (or CGUs) which are expected to benefit from combinaEon
synergies. The Directors have idenEfied a single CGU given the significant similariEes between the various products and different market
segments.
 
If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount, the lower amount is first deducted from the goodwill
attributed to the CGU and, then, from the individual assets of the CGU in proportion to their carrying amounts. Impairment losses allocated to
goodwill cannot be recovered in subsequent periods even if the reasons for the impairment adjustment cease to apply.
 
Other intangible assets
 
Other intangible assets purchased or produced internally are capitalized, in accordance with IAS 38, when it is probable that the use of the
assets will generate future economic benefits and the cost of the asset can be determined reliably.
 
These assets are measured at purchase or producEon cost and amorEzed on a straight-line basis over their esEmated useful lives, if they have
a finite useful life. Specifically, useful lives are estimated as follows:
 
➢Patents 5 years
➢Trademarks/Brands 10 years
➢Other intangible assets 5 years
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Research & development costs
 
General research and development costs are expenses in the period in which they are incurred. However, costs incurred for specific
development projects are capitalized insofar that the requirements of IAS 38 are satisfied.
 
Specifically, intangible assets resulting from development (or the development phase of an internal project) shall be recognized only if the
entity can demonstrate the following:
 

 • the possibility of completing the intangible asset so that it is available for use or for sale;  
 • the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;  
 • the manner in which the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits;  
 • the availability of appropriate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and for the utilization or

sale of the intangible asset;
 

 • the ability to reliably measure the cost attributable to the intangible asset during its development.  
 
Development costs previously recorded in the income statement cannot be recognized as an intangible asset in a subsequent period.
Development costs are amorEzed over five years, the average useful life of the benefits relaEng to the new products developed; useful life is
periodically reviewed.

 
Intangible assets acquired upon a business combination
 

Intangible assets which are acquired upon a business combinaEon and are recorded separately from goodwill are iniEally recognized at fair
value at the acquisition date.

 
Customer list

 
The Group’s Customer List is considered a finite life intangible asset. It is amorEzed on a straight-line basis over an esEmated useful life of 20
years, a period considered reasonable in light of the degree of loyalty of the main customers and the length of the exisEng relaEonships with
them.
 
The value of the Customer List was determined during the Purchase Price Allocation as at 30 September 2014. If there are indicators of
impairment, an impairment test is performed on the Customer List.

 
Trademarks

 
The Faster brand is considered a finite life intangible asset. It is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years, based
on an independent appraisal.
 
The value of the trademark was determined during the Purchase Price Allocation at 30 September 2014.

 
Impairment of assets
 
At each reporEng date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to determine if there are indicators that
their value has been impaired. If any such indicators exist, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the
amount of the adjustment required. Where it is not possible to esEmate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group esEmates
the recoverable amount of the cash generaEng unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and
value in use. When determining value in use, future cash flows aNer taxaEon, as esEmated based on past experience, are discounted to fair
value using a rate that reflects the present market valuation of the value of money and the specific risks relating to the asset. The main
assumpEons made when calculaEng value in use regard the discount rate, the growth rate, expected change in selling price and the direct
costs trend during the calculation period.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash generating unit) is estimated as lower than its carrying amount, carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount and the loss recorded in the income statement. When an impairment adjustment is no longer required, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash generaEng unit), except for goodwill, is increased to the new value based on an esEmate of recoverable
amount but this cannot exceed the net carrying amount the asset would have had if the impairment adjustment had never been made. The
reversal of the impairment adjustment is recorded in the income statement.

 
Financial instruments
 

Presentation and identification criteria
 

A financial asset is any asset representing:
 

 ➢ cash and cash equivalents;
 ➢ a contractual right to receive money or another financial asset from another party;
 ➢ a contractual right to exchange financial instruments with another party on potentially favorable terms;
 ➢ an instrument representing equity in another entity;
 ➢ a contract, possibly a derivative, that is or may be settled with instruments representing equity in the entity.
 

A financial liability is any liability representing a contractual obligation to:
 

 ➢ transfer cash or another financial asset to another entity;
 ➢ exchange financial instruments with another party on potentially unfavorable  terms;
 ➢ a contract, possibly a derivative, that is or may be settled with instruments representing equity in the entity.  
 

An equity instrument is a contract represenEng a residual interest in the assets of an enEty net of its liabiliEes. For example, it may include
shares, quotas or rights to purchase shares or quotas in a company.
 
The financial instruments held by the Group are included in the following captions:
 

 ➢ non-current assets: “Other financial assets” (Non-Current);
 ➢ current assets: “Trade receivables”, “Other current financial assets” and “Other current assets”;
 ➢ non-current liabilities: “Borrowing non current”, “Financial lease non current” and “Other non current financial liabilities”;
 ➢ current liabiliEes: ““Borrowing current”, “Financial lease current” and “Other current financial liabiliEes”, “Trade payables” and

“Other current liabilities”.
 

 
The capEon “Cash & banks” includes bank current accounts which may be converted swiNly into cash are not subject to a significant risk of a
change in value.
 
Financial assets represented by debt securiEes and equity securiEes are iniEally recognized on the date of seOlement whereas derivaEves are
recognized on the subscription date.
 
Upon iniEal recogniEon, financial assets held for trading purposes are measured at fair value, not including transacEon expenses or income
relating to the instrument which are recorded in the income statement.

 

Page 16 of 53
 



Measurement
 
If they have a pre-set maturity date, trade receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents are measured at amorEzed cost
calculated using the effective interest method. When financial assets do not have a pre-set maturity date, they are measured at cost.
 
Receivables maturing aNer more than a year, interest-free receivables and receivables bearing interest at below market rate are discounted
using market rates. Tests are performed regularly to check for objecEve evidence that financial assets, taken individually or as part of a group
of assets, have suffered an impairment of value. If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is recorded as an expense in the income
statement for the period.
 
Financial assets held with the intention of being held to maturity are accounted for based on settlement date and, at the Eme of iniEal
recogniEon in the financial statements, they are measured at acquisiEon cost, inclusive of transaction related expenses. After initial
recognition, financial assets available for sale and those held for trading are measured at fair value. When market price is not available, the
fair value of financial instruments available for sale is measured using the most appropriate valuaEon methods e.g. analysis of discounted
cash flows, performed using market information available at the reporting date. Gains and losses on financial assets available for sale are
recorded directly in equity unEl the financial asset is sold or wriOen down: at that point, cumulaEve gains or losses, including those previously
recorded in equity, are included in the income statement for the period. Gains and losses generated by changes in the fair value of financial
instruments held for trading are recorded in the income statement for the period.
 
Upon first Eme recogniEon, trade payables, current financial liabiliEes and other current liabiliEes are recorded at fair value (normally
represented by the transacEon cost), inclusive of transacEon-related expenses. Subsequently, except for derivaEves, financial liabiliEes are
stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
 

Impairment of financial assets
 
Financial assets other than those classified in the fair value through profit or loss category are subjected to an impairment test at each
reporEng date. The recoverability of the value of financial assets is tested in detail for each individual instrument and on a collecEve basis for
groups of similar instruments.

 
Derecognition of financial assets

 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset from the financial statements when it transfers the contractual right to receive cash flows relaEng
to the asset or when said right expires.

 
When a financial asset is transferred, it is necessary to assess the extent to which the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. In more detail:
 

 ➢ if the Company transfers substanEally all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, it derecognizes the asset
transferred and separately records any rights and obligations created or maintained as a result of the transfer;

 

 ➢ if the Company maintains substanEally all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, it conEnues to recognize the
asset.

 

 
Derivative instruments

 
The Group uses derivaEve instruments, such as contracts for the forward sale of foreign currency, Flexible Forward contracts, IRS Caps and
other instruments to hedge the risk of fluctuation in exchange rates and interest rates. These derivaEves are iniEally recognized at cost and
restated at fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
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The fair value of forward contracts in foreign currency is measured using the forward exchange rates calculated and discounted at the
reporting date based on the interest rate curve that coincides with the contract maturities.
 
The fair value of interest rate contracts is the discounted value of future cash flows esEmated based on the interest rate curve for the period in
question.
 
These instruments are uElized with the intenEon of hedging although there are no wriOen strategic management rules or specific methods
and procedures to measure the effecEveness of such operaEons. Consequently, when preparing the consolidated financial statements, in
accordance with IAS 39, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss (non-hedge accounting).

 
Inventory
 
Inventory is measured at the lower of purchase or producEon cost (determined using the First In First Out method) and the corresponding
market value represented by the replacement cost of materials purchased and esEmated realizable value for finished goods and WIP
(calculated taking account of any manufacturing costs and direct selling costs yet to be incurred). Purchase cost includes costs incurred to
bring the assets to their storage locaEon. The producEon cost of finished goods and WIP includes direct costs and the porEon of indirect
producEon costs that may reasonably be allocated to them based on normal uElizaEon of producEon capacity but excluding financial
expenses. WIP has been measured based on producEon cost during the period, taking account of the percentage of compleEon of the
production activities.
The cost of inventory is determined applying the FIFO method.
 
Obsolete and slow moving items are written down in relation to their possible future utilization or realization by recording a specific inventory
provision. Inventory provisions are reversed in subsequent periods if the reasons for which they were created no longer apply.

 
Provisions for employee benefits
 
IAS 19 divides plans that provide for post-employment benefits into defined contribuEon plans and defined benefit plans, depending on the
economic nature envisaged by the contractual terms and conditions:
 

 • defined contribuEon plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company makes payments to an insurance
company or pension fund; the company is not responsible for the risk that, upon maturaEon of the right, the pension fund or
insurance company does not have sufficient funds to pay the benefits to entitled employees;

 

 
 • defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company is obliged to provide employees with the

agreed benefits. In this case, both the actuarial risk and the investment risk are borne by the employer.
 

 
The employee severance indemnity provision, accruing in favor of employees unEl 31 December 2006 (effecEve date of pension reform) and
subject to revaluaEon, may be classified under defined benefit plans; the amount already accruing must be projected forward to esEmate the
amount payable at the Eme of terminaEon of the employment relaEonship and then discounted using the projected unit credit method to
take account of the amount of Eme that will pass before payment is actually made. This calculaEon method provides for the use of actuarial
assumpEons of a demographic and financial nature. The actuarial method is used to allocate the current service cost (i.e. the amount of the
rights accruing during the period in favor of employees) to “personnel costs” in the income statement while the notional expense the
company would incur on the market to raise a loan of an amount equal to the employee severance indemnity is recorded under “Other gains
/ losses financial”.
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Actuarial gains and losses and the related tax effect are recorded directly in the Income Statement under “Other comprehensive income”.

 
As a result of the reform menEoned above, employee severance indemnity enEtlement accruing from 1 January 2007 is considered a defined
contribuEon plan and, therefore, payments made by employees aNer that date are recorded at nominal amount under liabiliEes unEl such
time as the Company makes payment to the external pension funds chosen by the employees.

 
Provisions for risks and charges
 
Provisions for risks and charges are created to cover losses and liabiliEes that are certain or probable but whose amount or due date could
not be determined at the reporting date.
 
IAS 37 provides that provision can only be made when the following conditions are respected:
 

 • the entity has a current obligation as a result of past events;
 • it is likely that a cash outflow will be required to fulfil the obligation;
 • the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

 
Provisions are recorded at the best esEmate of the amount payable to exEnguish the obligaEon at the reporEng date, aNer considering all
risks relaEng to the obligaEon. If the effect of discounEng the amount of the financial resources that will be employed is significant,
provisions are determined by discounEng future expected cash flows at a rate that reflects the current market valuaEon of the cost of money
over time.
 
The provisions are periodically updated to reflect changes in cost esEmates, realizaEon periods and any discounted amount; changes of
estimates of provisions are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period in which the change occurred and allocated to
the same Statement of Comprehensive Income capEon under which the allocaEon was previously recorded, up to the amount of the related
liability. Any posiEve excess of the provision for risks reversed compared to the original liability is recorded in the Income Statement under
“Other gains / losses operational”.
 
Provisions for restructuring costs are recorded where the Company has approved a detailed plan and has communicated it to third parties
affected.

 
Revenue recognition
 
Revenue is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis; sales of products and services are accounted for at fair
value.
 
Revenue is recorded net of returns, discounts, allowances and bonuses, as well as taxes directly related to the sale of goods and the supply of
services.
 
Revenue from sales is recognized when the Company has transferred all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer
and the amount of the revenue can be reliably determined.
 
Almost all the shipments of goods are made under ex-works incoterm terms and all the delivery costs are borne by the customers.

 
Financial income and expenses
 
Financial income and expenses are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis. More specifically, interest
income and expenses are recorded based on the amount financed and the effecEve interest rate applicable, which represents the rate that
discounts estimated future
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receipts/payments over the expected life of the financial asset/liability in order to bring them into line with the carrying amount of the asset.
 

Taxation
 
Taxes for the year represent an estimate of current and deferred taxes.
 
Current taxes for the year include all taxes calculated on the Group’s taxable income. They are determined based on a realisEc forecast of the
taxes payable, applying current tax legislation in each country of residence of the Group companies.
 
Deferred taxes are the taxes the Group expects to pay or recover on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabiliEes in the financial statements and the corresponding tax value used when calculaEng taxable income, based on the tax rates in force
when the temporary differences will reverse. Deferred tax liabiliEes are generally recorded for all taxable temporary differences while
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is considered probable that there will be future taxable income to enable uElizaEon of
deducEble temporary differences. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporEng date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that future taxable income will enable the recovery of all or part of such assets. The related Statement of
Financial PosiEon entries are made under “Deferred tax assets” and “Deferred tax liabiliEes” on the assets and liabiliEes sides of the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
 
Deferred taxes are recorded directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income except for those relaEng to items recorded directly in equity,
in which case the related deferred taxes are also recorded in equity.

 
Use of estimates when preparing financial statements
 
When preparing the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes in accordance with IFRS, Management has to make esEmates
and assumpEons that have an effect on the amount of the assets and liabiliEes reported and on disclosures regarding conEngent assets and
liabiliEes at the reporEng date. The esEmates and assumpEons used are based on procedures, experience and other factors considered
relevant. Actual results could differ from these esEmates. EsEmates and assumpEons are reviewed periodically and the effects of any
changes are immediately reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. EsEmates are used to measure tangible and intangible assets
subjected to impairment tests as described above, as well as to record provisions for bad debts, obsolete inventory, depreciaEon and
amortization, employee benefits, taxes, contingent liabilities and other allocations to provisions. In more detail:

 
Recoverability of the amount of tangible and intangible assets

 
The calculaEon of impairment of tangible and intangible assets as described in the accounEng policy “Impairment of assets” requires, when
esEmaEng value in use, the use of Business Plans prepared by Group companies which are based on a range of assumpEons relaEng to future
events and acEons by the Directors of subsidiaries that might not materialize. Meanwhile, when fair value is esEmated, assumpEons are
made in relaEon to likely future negoEaEons between third parEes based on historical paOerns that might not be repeated. Goodwill is the
most significant caption that is estimated.

 
Provisions for bad debts

 
Receivables are adjusted by the bad debt provision in order to take account of their recoverable amount. When calculaEng the provision
required, the Directors make subjecEve assessments based on documentaEon and informaEon available on the ability of debtors to pay, as
well as on their past experience and historical trends.
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Inventory obsolescence provision
 
Slow moving and obsolete inventory is periodically examined and provision is made if its recoverable amount is lower than its carrying
amount. The provisions are calculated based on Management assumpEons and esEmates, taking account of past experience and historical
results.
Group companies have a specific IT system procedure to perform detailed obsolescence calculations for each inventory item.
 

Employee benefits
 

The present value of liabiliEes for employee benefits depends on a series of factors that are determined using actuarial techniques and
making a number of assumpEons. These assumpEons regard the discount rate, future remuneraEon increases, mortality rates and
resignation rates. Any change in these assumptions could have a significant impact on liabilities for employee benefits.

 
Taxes
 

The Group is subject to several different sets of income tax legislaEon. When determining the Group’s tax liabiliEes, Management has to
assess transacEons whose tax consequences are not certain at the reporEng date. Moreover, deferred tax assets are measured based on
expected earnings in future periods; the assessment of such earnings depends on factors that could vary over Eme with a significant impact
on deferred tax assets.

 
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is:
 

 ➢ a possible obligation resulting from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed when one or more uncertain future
events not entirely controllable by the Company takes place; or

 

 ➢ a current obligation resulting from past events but which is not recorded because:  
 

 • it is improbable that it will be necessary to deploy resources to produce economic benefits to fulfil the obligation; or  
 • the amount of the obligation cannot be determined with sufficient reliability.

 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized. However, if an event is possible but not probable or if it is probable but cannot be quanEfied,
appropriate disclosure is made in the Notes.

 
Employee incentive plans (cash settled instruments)
 
The Group does not have any employee incentive plans that may be classified as ‘equity settled instruments’ as described by IFRS 2.
 
The Group does have employee incentive plans that may be classed as ‘cash settled instruments’ as described by IFRS 2.
 
These are measured at the fair value of the corresponding liability, measuring the goods and services received by the enEty. UnEl the liability
is seOled, the enEty shall redetermine its fair value at each reporEng date. IniEal recogniEon of fair value and any subsequent change is
recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income with a contra- entry to the corresponding liability, based on the nature of the goods or
services provided to the entity.
 
Different binomial methods are applied depending on the circumstances (binomial distribuEon or tree, mono-periodic, bi-periodic, mulE-
periodic).
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ANer the acquisiEon by Sun Hydraulics CorporaEon the management of Faster Group determined the cost related to the employee incenEve
plan and recognized the final value in profit & loss in 2017, as it became certain.

 
Discretionary decisions when applying accounting standards

 
When applying the accounting standards, the Directors made the following discretionary decisions with an effect on the amounts reported:
 

 - in order to avoid excessive volaElity in “EBIT”, posiEve and negaEve differences resulEng from the fair value measurement of
derivative financial instruments are recorded under “Other financial income (-) and expenses (+)”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

NOTE 1 – REVENUE
 
This capEon mainly comprises revenue from the sale of finished goods and, to a minor extent, sales of materials (sale of scrap metal from
lathing by authorized operators and sales of raw materials or tools to suppliers). There were no sales of services in the three years presented
herein.  The capEon “Revenue adjustments” includes cash discounts and credit notes issued to customers for price adjustments, volume
adjustments, discounts, bonuses or invoicing errors. “Revenue” is detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Gross revenue from sale of goods                   89,496,548                   90,313,920                 105,248,510
Revenue adjustments                    (1,767,102)                    (1,147,962)                       (250,888)
Revenue from sale of materials                         298,853                         263,657                             7,844
Revenue from sale of scrap                      1,312,593                      1,125,006                      1,805,115
Revenue from sale of tools                                 298                             1,672                                    -  
Sundry revenue other than the above                           87,518                           88,419                         104,633
    
Total                  89,428,708                   90,644,712                 106,915,214
    
 

“Gross revenue from sale of goods” sub-caption is broken down by geographical areas in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
ITALY                      8,663,081                      9,158,958                   10,664,432
EUROPE                   37,523,827                   36,717,564                   43,418,410
REST OF THE WORLD                   43,309,640                   44,437,398                   51,165,668
    
Total                   89,496,548                   90,313,920                 105,248,510
    
 
NOTE 2 – COST OF GOODS SOLD – MATERIALS AND PROCESSES
 

This capEon includes cost of goods sold relaEng to purchases of raw materials and components, as well as costs for internal and external
manufacturing processes. The Group carries out three main manufacturing processes: mechanical works, treatment and assembly.
 
Costs incidental to materials include freight costs and customs duties on goods inward, as well as inventory write-downs and reversals are based
on a review of the obsolescence provision.
The caption is detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
 2015 2016 2017
Costs for raw materials and components                   22,873,908                   21,800,839                   28,065,539
Costs related to materials (freight and other)                      1,201,024                       (213,084)                         500,593
Costs for external manufacturing processes                      7,434,506                      7,640,420                      8,349,164
Costs for internal manufacturing processes                      8,050,821                   8,458,748                   8,461,679
Labor costs                      9,243,507                      9,501,030                   10,664,804
    
Total                   48,803,766                   47,187,953                   56,041,779
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NOTE 3 – COST OF GOODS SOLD – DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND WRITE-DOWNS

This capEon includes depreciaEon, amorEzaEon and write-downs included in cost of goods sold. These costs are included in the cost of
manufacturing processes but we prefer to show them separately given their non-cash nature.
 
The caption is broken down in the following table:
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Amortization of intangible assets                      6,244,136                      6,310,700                      6,259,752
Depreciation of tangible assets                      2,859,714                      2,863,545                      2,930,755
    
Total                      9,103,850                      9,174,245                      9,190,507
    

 
NOTE 4 – DISTRIBUTION COSTS

This capEon includes the distribuEon cost of products, including expenses for the internal shipping departments, external logisEcs services,
variable commission expenses, customs duEes and freight costs for the delivery of goods from Group sites to customers and for the transfer
of goods between (and on) Group sites.
 
The caption is broken down in the following table:
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Customs duties                         810,574                         760,834                         799,699
Commission                         140,385                         165,303                         349,487
Freight                      1,754,697                      1,859,278                      2,611,344
Internal logistics and shipping costs                      3,314,143                      3,587,448                      3,903,134
    
Total                      6,019,799                      6,372,863                      7,663,664
    

 
“Internal logisEcs and shipping costs” sub-capEon includes personnel costs of Euro 3,203,353 for 2017, Euro 2,962,280 for 2016, and Euro
2,668,096 for 2015.

 
NOTE 5 – SELLING COSTS

This capEon includes the cost of the sales organizaEon and the commercial acEviEes of the sales force. It includes internal and external
personnel costs as well as travel, markeEng and commercial consultancy costs plus costs incurred to parEcipate at trade fairs, exhibiEons and
sales events, in general.
 
The caption is analyzed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Other selling costs                      2,323,404                      2,043,224                      1,886,162
Costs for the internal sales force                      2,437,591                      3,677,484                      3,585,315
    
Total                      4,760,995                      5,720,708                      5,471,477
    

 
The cost of the internal sales force consists of personnel costs.
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NOTE 6 – ADMINISTRATIVE AND STAFF COSTS

This capEon includes organizaEon, management, administraEve and staff costs in general. It includes the cost of internal personnel in the
accounEng/admin, HR, IT, procurement, insurance, quality, general services and secretarial departments, as well as the fees of governance
bodies (external auditors, statutory auditors and others) and for legal, tax, IT, staff recruitment, and training services.

It also includes telephone costs, Internet costs, postage and other costs typical of administrative and staff activities.
 
The caption is detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Directors’ fees                         643,638                         465,270                         1,957,977
Other costs for administrative and staff activities                      2,885,964                      2,417,178                      2,772,960
Costs for administrative and HQ personnel                      2,690,762                      3,211,674                      3,652,420
    
Total                      6,220,364                      6,094,122                      8,383,357
    

 
Directors’ fees includes the costs calculated according to IFRS 2 for each reporting period. These costs arise from employee incentive plans
classified as ‘cash settled instruments’.
 
For more detail refer to the paragraph for ‘Employee incentive plans’ contained in the Note 30 (Other liabilities).
 
NOTE 7 – RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

This capEon includes the cost of the R&D organizaEon and acEviEes including internal personnel costs, as well as patent registraEon and
renewal expenses and all other expenses incurred for R&D activities.
 
The caption is detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Other R&D costs                         185,927                         233,610                         315,838
Costs for R&D personnel                      1,176,859                      1,214,191                      1,355,226
    
Total                      1,362,786                      1,447,801                      1,671,064
    
 

NOTE 8 – OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

This caption includes operating income and expenses such as gains and losses on disposals, reimbursements for legal cases won and expenses
for legal cases lost, allocaEons to the bad debt provision, operaEng subsidies from government bodies and any penalties imposed by them,
allocation to provisions for risks not aOributable to a specific cost and uElizaEon of provisions for risks (only insofar as in excess of the
corresponding liability), other minor operating income and expenses.
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The caption is detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
 2015 2016 2017
Other operating expenses                         216,447                           94,449                         181,984
Other operating income                       (845,222)                       (340,933)                       (303,438)
    
Total                       (628,775)                       (246,484)                       (121,454)
    

 
NOTE 9 – FINANCIAL INCOME

This capEon includes income from the Group’s current and non-current assets such as royalEes income, rental income, dividends from
associated companies, interest income on guarantee deposits, cash deposits and cash equivalents. EssenEally, it includes any income
generated by the Group and resulEng from its employment of resources in assets of any kind. This income does not relate to the Group’s
operaEng acEviEes which primarily regard the manufacture and sale of its products. It primarily consists of financial income on guarantee
deposits and other minor amounts.
 
The caption is detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Income from current assets                          (23,110)                            (9,251)                            (9,891)
Income from non-current assets                            (2,678)                            (2,378)                            (2,816)
    
Total                          (25,788)                          (11,629)                          (12,707)
    

 

   NOTE 10 – FINANCIAL EXPENSES

This caption includes financial expenses on bank borrowing, debt towards other lenders and leasing companies – including the amortized cost
effect in terms of IAS 39 – as well as any financial expenses incurred for trading in currency, interest rate and other derivaEves (e.g. premiums
/ discounts on forward sales). It also includes periodical differentials on financial instruments settled in cash.
 
The caption includes a small amount of interest expenses on tax payments.
 
It is detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Financial expenses on other liabilities                         452,945                         645,016                         679,471
Financial expenses on bank borrowing, debt to
other lenders and leasing debt

                     4,996,185                      4,765,972                      4,390,826

Debt to other lenders and leasing debt                           23,072                           13,968                           10,189
    
Total                      5,472,202                      5,424,956                      5,080,486
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NOTE 11 – OTHER FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
 
This capEon includes the posiEve and negaEve differenEals maturing in each period on the fair value of financial instruments arranged in
order to hedge fluctuation in exchange rates and interest rates and on other derivatives in general.  In fact the Group uses exchange rate and
interest rate hedging instruments but has opted for ‘non hedge accounEng’. Therefore, it expenses changes in the fair value of the financial
instruments used to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for each period.
A decrease in positive fair value represents a financial expense while a decrease in negative fair value represents financial income.
The caption is detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
Exchange losses 4,699,672 1,833,852 1,804,573
Exchange gains (2,131,818) (1,208,053) (3,228,242)
Effects of exchange rate changes on USD Loans (1,203,253) (379,680) 1,430,985
Negative diff. in fair value of financial instruments 748,132 408,958 14,790
Positive diff. in fair value of financial instruments -  (793,888) (2,441,485)
    
Total 2,112,733 (138,811) (2,419,379)
    

 
NOTE 12 – TAXATION
 

This capEon of the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes deferred tax income and expenses, direct taxes on income, any tax penalties
and any amounts allocated to provisions for risks regarding direct taxation.
Tax expenses incurred during the years presented are shown in the following  table:
 

Values are expressed in Euro
 2015 2016 2017
Deferred taxes                    (3,369,966)                    (2,521,817)                       (951,465)
Direct income taxes                      5,220,767                      4,231,298                      5,909,934
Direct income taxes – penalties                             9,395                                    -                                     -  
    
Total                      1,860,196                      1,709,481                      4,958,469
    

 
The Company’s applicable Italian statutory tax rate is equal to the IRES and IRAP combined tax rate applicable in the jurisdiction within Italy
where the Company’s head office is registered. Income taxes reported differ from the amount computed by applying the statutory rates to
earnings before income taxes. The reconciliation is as follows:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 2016 2017
EBT 6,226,776 9,618,988 15,966,420
Italian Statutory Rate 31,4%                       31,4%                       27,9%
Expected Income Tax Expense at Statutory Rate 1,955,207 3,020,362 4,454,631
RECONCILING ITEMS    
Foreign rate differential (1) (645,661) (1,913,939) (113,225)
Non-deductible expenses (2) 532,859 573,015 588,993
Other permanent differences 17,791 30,043 28,070
Income Tax Expense               1,860,196               1,709,481               4,958,469
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(1) The foreign rate differential arises due to subsidiaries’ taxes paid in jurisdictions with lower corporate tax rates
(2) Other non-deductible expenses refer to personnel costs that are permanently not deductible for IRAP purposes (3.9% tax rate)

 
This note also includes details of the following Statement of Financial Position captions regarding tax receivables and payables, as well as details
of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

 
TAX RECEIVABLES (current and non-current)
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Direct tax receivables                          613,515                         935,652
Indirect tax receivables                          562,939                         966,533
Tax receivables – current                       1,176,454                      1,902,185
    
Total                       1,176,454                      1,902,185
    
 

TAX PAYABLES (current and non-current)
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Other tax payables                          614,926                         666,762
Direct tax payables                          365,436                      2,018,235
Tax payables – current                          980,362                      2,684,997
    
Total                          980,362                      2,684,997
    
 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
 

Significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax balances at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows (Note the Company has
no unrecognized deferred tax assets to be disclosed):
Values are expressed in Euro
DTA Category 2015 Credited / (charged) to

net earnings
Foreign exchange on

translation
2016

Risk Provisions’ Accrual          174,620        (125,382)             49,238
Inventory provision          818,076        (173,729)           644,347

Unrealized exchange gains/losses          445,912             34,325          480,237
Profit in stock          101,117          339,309           440,426

Intangible Assests          656,452                  891           657,343
Share-based premium            76,394          176,065           252,459

Business Combination effects      1,676,563        (407,572)       1,268,991
Other           107,594           107,594

      3,949,134          (82,824)            34,325      3,900,635
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Values are expressed in Euro
DTA Category 2016 Credited /

(charged) to net
earnings

Credited / (charged)
to

other  comprehensive
income

Foreign exchange
on translation

2017

Risk Provisions’ Accrual                     49,238                 462,000                   511,238
Inventory provision                  644,347                     25,126                    669,473

Unrealized exchange gains/losses                  480,237               (236,297)                  243,940
Profit in stock                  440,426                 (84,890)                    355,536

Intangible Assests                 657,343               (164,108)                    493,235
Share-based premium                  252,459               (236,870)                       15,589

Business Combination effects               1,268,991              (220,694)                 1,048,297
Other                  107,594                  116,778                    89,050                   313,422

               3,900,635                (102,658)                     89,050             (236,297)               3,650,730
 
Deferred tax assets have been recognized following an assessment of the probability that, in future tax periods, there will be sufficient
taxable income to enable recovery of the deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets on tax loss carryforward represents a very limited amount
equal to 62,385 USD (Euro 52,018 with the exchange rate as of December 31st 2017) related to US tax losses carried forward.
 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
 
Values are expressed in Euro

DTL Category 2015 Credited /
(charged) to net

earnings

Credited / (charged)
to

other  comprehensive
income

Foreign exchange
on translation

2016

Unrealized exchange gains/losses                  100,242              21,646          121,888
Amortization of trademark               9,263,156            (1,142,431)        8,120,725

IAS 19                    24,761                     (5,719)             19,042
PPA Allocation on Trademark            12,208,068           (1,975,375)      10,232,693

Other               (387,294)                 566,464               (188,147)              (8,977)
FIFO Inventory                   40,619            (40,619)                       -  

            21,249,552            (2,591,961)               (193,866)            21,646    18,485,371
Values are expressed in Euro
DTL Category 2016 Credited /

(charged) to net
earnings

Credited / (charged)
to

other  comprehensive
income

Foreign exchange
on translation

2017

Unrealized exchange gains/losses                  121,888               (121,723)                         165
Amortization of trademark              8,120,725           (1,015,090)                7,105,635

Hedge Contract                  369,953                    369,953
IAS 19                   19,042                     (4,570)                     14,472

PPA Allocation on Trademark            10,232,693               (587,165)                9,645,528
Other                   (8,977)                   63,605                      54,628

            18,485,371            (1,168,697)                   (4,570)             (121,723)            17,190,381
 

NOTE ON CONTINGENT ASSETS
 
The following is noted with regard to conEngent assets which have not been recognized in the financial statements as they are not certain.
For now, the Parent Company has performed its IRES corporate income tax computaEon for 2017 without taking account of the potenEal
benefits from the ACE (Aiuto Crescita Economica – Economic Growth Assistance) and “Patent Box” regimes.  Through its external advisors, the
Parent Company is taking all available measures to obtain said tax benefits which are currently under review and awaiting finalization.
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If the ACE and “Patent Box” tax benefits are obtained, wholly or parEally, the Parent Company will assess whether or not to recompute the
IRES due for 2017 and prior years. The maximum benefit in relaEon to both types of tax relief is around Euro 3.0 million assuming 100%
positive feedback in relation to the applicable legislative provisions.
 
NOTE 13 – OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

This caption includes:
 ➢ the portion relating to the reporting period of exchange differences arising from the translation into Euro of foreign currency

financial statements of subsidiaries in accordance with paragraph 83(g) of IAS 1;
 

 ➢ the portion relating to the reporting period of actuarial gains and losses determined in accordance with IAS 19;  
 ➢ the deferred tax income/expense effect on the respective portion of actuarial gains and losses for the period.
 

The Group has shown “Other comprehensive income” reporEng separately those items that will be subsequently recycled through profit
& loss from those that will not. Only “Actuarial gains (and losses)” will not be potentially be recycled through profit & loss if the related
liabilities are settled, wholly or partially.

 
NOTE 14 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (and other tangible assets)

This capEon includes the historical cost and accumulated depreciaEon of all tangible assets (property, machinery, plant and equipment and other
tangible assets with a long-term useful life).
 
The balances included in this caption are detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Plant and machinery                15,207,880               15,895,636
Equipment and molds                   7,553,409                  8,686,655
Other tangible assets                   3,911,725                      4,153,603
(Accum. Depn. – Plant and machinery)             (12,133,224)                  (12,516,290)
(Accum. Depn. – Equipment and molds)                (6,192,852)                    (6,784,670)
(Accum. Depn. – Other tangible assets)                (2,711,722)                    (3,013,117)
LEASING – Plant and machinery                13,563,682                   13,838,764
LEASING – Equipment and molds                      500,981                         794,981
LEASING – Other tangible assets                      868,267                         880,236
(LEASING Accum. Depn. – Plant and machinery)              (11,213,821)                  (11,390,730)
(LEASING Accum. Depn. – Equipment and molds)                   (250,414)                       (381,134)
(LEASING Accum. Depn. – Other tangible assets)                   (460,068)                       (572,954)
Total                   8,643,843                      9,590,980
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The following tables contain details of movements on net tangible assets (owned outright by the Group following direct purchase) in 2016 and
2017:

Values are expressed in Euro
 Plant & Machinery Equipment & Molds Other Tangible Assets

Balance at 31-12-2015               3,188,379               1,259,047                  982,877
Increases                  777,888                  815,779                  567,868
Decreases                       (8,606)                     (38,754)                     (19,065)
Depreciation                  (883,005)                  (675,515)                  (331,677)
Balance at 31-12-2016               3,074,656               1,360,557               1,200,003

    
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 Plant & Machinery Equipment & Molds Other Tangible Assets

Balance at 31-12-2016               3,074,656               1,360,557               1,200,003
Increases               1,056,568               1,329,015                  307,752
Decreases                     (13,569)                            (84)                     (11,311)
Depreciation                  (738,309)                  (787,503)                  (355,958)
Balance at 31-12-2017               3,379,346               1,901,985               1,140,486

    
 

Increases during the period mainly regard purchases of machinery for use in internal mechanical engineering processes and molds. Decreases
in “plant and machinery” form part of the routine replacement of mechanical engineering machinery.
 
The following tables contain details of movements on net tangible assets (held under finance leases) in 2016 and 2017:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 Plant & Machinery -
Fin. Lease

Equipment & Molds -
Fin. Lease

Other Tangible Assets -
Fin. Lease

Balance at 31-12-2015               2,723,349                  115,137                  309,445
Increases                  407,197                  217,500                  235,944
Decreases                              -                        (8,828)                     (17,769)
Depreciation                  (780,685)                     (73,242)                  (119,421)
Balance at 31-12-2016               2,349,861                  250,567                  408,199

    
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 Plant & Machinery -
Fin. Lease

Equipment & Molds -
Fin. Lease

Other Tangible Assets -
Fin. Lease

Balance at 31-12-2016               2,349,861                  250,567                  408,199
Increases                  879,000                  294,000                     45,002
Decreases                       (8,481)                              -                               -  
Depreciation                  (772,346)                  (130,720)                  (145,919)
Balance at 31-12-2017               2,448,034                  413,847                  307,282
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Also in the case of assets held by the Group under finance leases, increases for the period regard purchases of machinery for internal
mechanical engineering processes and cars for commercial activities.
 
The total amount of tangible asset owned outright by the Group following direct purchase and held under finance leases represents the
carrying amount in the statement of financial position.

 
Presence of restrictions

 
The medium/long-term loans disbursed to the Group during the reporEng period (and described in more detail in Note 25 to “Bank
borrowing and debt towards other lenders”) provide for a restricEon on most Statement of Financial PosiEon Assets (capEons “Property,
plant and equipment” and “Inventory”) in the form of a special lien granted to the lending banks. The Group cannot grant any other
securities – in the form of pledges, mortgages, liens or other forms of guarantee – on its assets, although this does not affect the possibility of
granEng such guarantees where required by law or where specifically provided for in the loan agreement, as described in more detail in Note
25.
 
NOTE 15 – GOODWILL

The carrying amount of the net amounts reported and the recoverable amount are detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Goodwill                  119,559,236                 119,559,236
    
Total                  119,559,236                 119,559,236
    

 
No goodwill balances are subject to exchange differences. The Group comprises a single operating segment and cash generating units (CGU).
 
Pursuant to IAS 36, goodwill is not amortized but tested annually for impairment or, more frequently, whenever specific events and
circumstances indicate the possibility of impairment. The impairment test is performed by comparing the net carrying amount and the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use.
For these purposes, the value in use for 2017 was estimated based on the following assumptions:

 
 a) Revenue projection: the Group uses specific market studies purchased from specialists, its own market forecasts and analysis of

available historical data. The 2018 budget is based on specific analysis following a ‘boOom-up’ approach. The Business Plan was
prepared using a “top- down” approach. The market studies show global growth in demand for agricultural equipment with a
CAGR of slightly above 5.0% for the five years 2015-2019 and over. The market studies also show increased global demand for
earth moving equipment with a CAGR of slightly below 5% for the five years 2015-2019 and over.

 

 
Over the five year period 2013-2017, the Faster Group’s net revenue recorded a CAGR of +5.6% (gross revenue +5.8%) (3.2% for
2016 – gross revenue +3.21% for 2016); for the three years from 2015 to 2017, net revenue recorded a CAGR of +7.6% (+7.3% for
gross revenue)(2.3% for 2016 – for gross revenue +2.4% for 2016). In the first three years covered by the Business Plan (2018-
2020), a CAGR of +6.4% (13.9% for 2019) is projected for net sales revenue (+7.0% for gross revenue) (+13.9% for gross revenue
2016).
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Generally speaking, Faster management believes it can achieve a higher rate of growth than forecast by market studies thanks to four
main factors:
 

 - the development of new products
 - the development of specific new projects alongside customers
 - penetration of new geographical areas
 - attention to the commercial organization.
 
 b) EBITDA projection: in the three-year Business Plan period, EBITDA shows a CAGR of +8.82% (18.4% for 2016) thanks to projected

revenue growth and operaEng leverage available to the Group. In the five-year period 2013-2017, the Group’s EBITDA recorded a
CAGR of +12.29% (6.8% for 2016) (in the four years 2014-2017, it was 8.58%) (in the four years 2013-2016, it was 10%);

 

 
 c) Cash flow projection: future cash flows refer to a three-year period and all future periods have been determined based on the

perpetual return method. Cash flow for the years ahead is a normalized terminal amount based on the third specific year of the
Business Plan and it has been used to obtain an estimate of future results beyond the time period specifically considered. When
estimating value in use, terminal value was determined based on a long-term growth rate (g-rate) of 0.0% (0.0% for 2016);

 

 
 d) Other significant Business Plan assumpBons: it has been assumed that there will be no renegoEaEon of exisEng loan or

arrangement of new sources of financing. The Business Plan has been developed based on the exisEng consolidaEon perimeter
by no assuming acquisitions (on stand-alone basis).

 

 
 e) DeterminaBon of WACC: the WACC used to discount cash flows aNer taxaEon is 9.02% (7.94% for 2016). This rate reflects the

current market valuaEon in terms of return on equity and cost of debt. The weighted average cost of capital was determined
using the capital asset pricing model (“CAPM”). An unlevered beta of 0.95 (0.99 for 2016) was used and the debt/equity ratio
was extrapolated from an analysis of a Group of comparable companies operaEng in the industry, giving a levered beta of 1.02
(1.08 for 2016). Return on equity amounts to 9.63% (8.51% for 2016). The cost of debt was determined at 3.09% (2.63% for
2016). It has been used a tax rate of 24% valid from 2017 (27.5% till 2016);

 

 
 f) SimulaBons and sensiBvity analysis: as required by IFRS and by valuaEon pracEce, we also developed a ‘downside case’ which

shows a sales CAGR of +3.51% for the period 2018-2020 (4.2% for the period 2017-2019). This growth rate is slightly below
market studies currently available to the Group for the specific market of quick-release couplings and mulE-connecEons. This
‘break-even scenario’ shows growth below the market studies of demand for agricultural and earth moving equipment, as
described above. A sensiEvity analysis was also performed combining the two Business Plan scenarios and the two main input
variables (i.e. “g” rate and WACC discount rate). Processing the data, a total of twelve different scenarios are obtained, six of
them relating to the approved five year plan (projection for three years 2018-2020) and six relating to the ‘downside case’:

 

 
Sensitivity analysis of Business Plan approved by the Board of Directors on 19 July 2017
 

 ➢ g = -1%  the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016);
 ➢ g = +1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016);
 ➢ WACC = -1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016);
 ➢ WACC = +1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016);
 ➢ g -1% e WACC +1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016);
 ➢ g +1% e WACC -1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016).
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Sensitivity analysis of “downside case”
 

 ➢ g = -1% the Group should record an impairment adjustment of Euro 17.3 mln (12.9 mln for 2016);
 ➢ g = +1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016);
 ➢ WACC = -1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016);
 ➢ WACC = +1% the Group should record an impairment adjustment of Euro 20.4 mln (23.6 mln for 2016);
 ➢ g -1% e WACC +1%  the Group should record an impairment adjustment of Euro 34.2 mln (39.5 mln for 2016);
 ➢ g +1% e WACC -1% the Group should not record any impairment adjustment (same for 2016).
 

In light of the informaEon currently available and the Group’s historical informaEon, the following are considered improbable: a negaEve
revenue growth in the Business Plan years (negaEve g-rate); a further increase in the discount rate WACC; and revenue growth below market
forecasts over the three-year Business Plan period (‘downside case’). It is even more improbable that more than one of the above will occur
simultaneously. We believe that there is no impairment of goodwill and that it is correctly reported in the ‘Consolidated statement of
financial position’ at its recoverable amount.

 
The Directors had to make assumpEons and esEmates when determining the recoverable amount of goodwill as reported in the
‘Consolidated statement of financial posiEon’. In fact, the esEmate was based on profit and cash flow forecasts. It should, however, be noted
that the uncertainty regarding any future event – and whether they will occur at all or their Eming and amount - means that there could be
variances between actual and forecast amounts, even where the events forecast in relaEon to the assumpEons used to make profit and cash
flow forecasts do occur. The Group will constantly monitor events and circumstances that could lead to impairment.

 
NOTE 16 – TRADEMARKS

This caption is analyzed in the table below:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Trademarks                    28,919,960                   25,188,352
    
Total                    28,919,960                   25,188,352
    
 

The following changes in trademarks occurred in 2016 and 2017:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Beginning of year             32.651.568            28.919.960
Amortisation                3.731.608               3.731.608
End of year             28.919.960            25.188.352

    
 

The fair value of trademarks was determined at 30 September 2014 upon the Purchase Price Alloca�on. The Parent Company’s internal
valuation is adequately supported by a specific appraisal performed during 2015 by specialist, external appraisers.
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The Company Trademark was iniEally valued at Euro 36,383,174 gross. The appraisal report prepared by the external advisors was based on
the ‘Relief from Royalty’ method which bases the valuaEon of a trademark/brand on the future revenue flows that may be generated by
royalties, considering existing agreements or making an estimate based on parameters that may be obtained from a market approach.

 
NOTE 17 – OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other intangible assets are analyzed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Other intangible assets, net                    38,210,505                   36,049,320
    
Total                    38,210,505                   36,049,320
    
  
   Changes in Other intangible assets in the last two reporting periods were as follows:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Beginning of year             40,290,036            38,210,505
Increases                   501,176                  366,959
Decreases                        1,614                              -  
Amortisation                2,579,093               2,528,144
End of year             38,210,505            36,049,320

    
 

This caption mainly includes the “Customer List” and, to a residual extent, the Group’s software licenses and implementation costs.
 
The fair value of the Customer List was measured on 30 September 2014 upon the Purchase Price Allocation.
 
NOTE 18 – OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (non-current)

This capEon consists almost enErely of guarantee deposits paid by Group companies to the respecEve owners of leased/rented properEes.
The financial assets included in this caption have been discounted to take account of their medium/long- term maturity.
 
The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Guarantee deposit paid  530,207  526,357  
Long-term hedging instruments (interest)                              8,129                                    -  
Long-term hedging instruments (currencies)                                     -                          182,361
    
Total                          538,336                         708,718
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NOTE 19 – INVENTORY
 
Inventory is detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Gross inventory of raw materials                          583,497                         659,376
Gross inventory of components                    14,068,168                   12,963,815
Gross inventory of WIP                       2,190,373                      4,035,221
Gross inventory of finished goods                    10,419,262                      8,607,743
Gross inventory of tools and spare parts                       2,104,585                      2,141,996
(Inventory obsolescence provision)                     (3,618,020)                    (3,576,273)
    
Total                    25,747,865                   24,831,878
 

The following table contains details of movements on the inventory obsolescence provision during 2016 and 2017:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

Inventory obsolescence provision    
Balance at 31-12-2015   4,073,506
Allocated   161,338
Utilized   (616,824)
Balance at 31-12-2016                        3,618,020
Allocated                           136,788
Utilized                         (178,535)
Balance at 31-12-2017                        3,576,273
    

 
NOTE  20 – TRADE RECEIVABLES
 
The amounts included in Trade Receivables are detailed in the following table:
 

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Trade receivables from sale of goods                    14,887,659                   19,305,356
(Provision for doubtful debts)                        (708,472)                       (702,181)
    
Total                    14,179,187                   18,603,175
    
 

The increase in trade receivables is due to the higher level of revenue towards the end of 2017 than in 2016.
See the specific note on the credit risk – under “InformaEon on financial risks” – for more details about receivables by geographical area, the
bad debt provision, receivables maturity dates and other information.
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NOTE  21 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (current)
 
The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Short-term hedging instruments (currencies)                                     -                       1,353,899
Short-term hedging instruments (interest)                              6,864                                 204
Total                              6,864                      1,354,103
    
 

For more details regarding the exchange rate risk and the interest rate risk, see the Note headed “Information on financial risks”.
 

NOTE  22 – OTHER ASSETS (current)

This caption is detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Other current assets                          402,919                         404,858
    
Total                          402,919                         404,858
    

 
The balance includes receivables from social security and pensions authoriEes (INPS, INAIL and similar insEtuEons in the countries of
residence of the subsidiaries) plus sundry receivables and temporary deposits and down payments.
 
NOTE  23 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Cash and cash equivalents                       8,732,695                   18,943,308
    
Total                       8,732,695                   18,943,308
    

 
The balance consists entirely of amounts held in bank current accounts.

 
NOTE 24 – SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
See the Statement of Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity for details of share capital, reserves and results balances and movements
thereon.
 

SHARE CAPITAL
 

The Parent Company’s share capital has been wholly paid and it consists of 9,189,405 ordinary shares with a nominal par value of Euro 1.00
each.   The Extraordinary MeeEng of the Parent Company Shareholders, held on 27 September 2017 (see documents by notary Giuseppe
Antonio Michele Trimarchi, in Milan, no. 18381/7270), resolved to split the share capital into two separate share categories:
 

 - 9,097,511 category A ordinary shares;  
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 - 91,894 category B ordinary shares without voEng rights, except in case of share capital increases. They retain idenEcal rights in
terms of participation in profits or losses.

 

 
NOTE  25 – BANK BORROWING AND DEBT TOWARDS OTHER LENDERS (current and non-
current)

The balances included in this caption are detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Bank loans                       4,301,798                      5,154,351
Bank borrowing to finance working capital                       1,402,117                           98,511
Bank borrowing to finance working capital – interest                            24,227                           17,706
Current portion                       5,728,142                      5,270,568
Bank loans                    76,742,439                   67,728,187
Non-current portion                    76,742,439                   67,728,187
    
Total                    82,470,581                   72,998,755
    

 
Bank Loans (Loan Facility from pool of banks)
 
A breakdown of the principal of the loan disbursed on 30 September 2014 from a pool of five banks (Unicredit Spa, Société Générale, Intesa
Sanpaolo Spa, IKB Deutsche Industriebank AG, Milan branch and GE Capital Interbanca S.p.A), coordinated by Banca IMI Spa, as co-arranger,
and by Unicredit Bank AG, Milan branch, as agent bank, is provided below.
 
In 2017, the Parent Company made the following principal repayments:
 

 a) Euro 3,516,464 on Facility  A1
 b) Euro 1,391,128 on Facility  A2

 
During the period, the Parent Company made further principal repayments – defined by the loan agreement as ‘Excess Cash Flow’
repayments – as follows:
 

 a) Euro 544,897 on Facility  A1
 b) Euro 215,564 on Facility A2
 c) Euro 931,176 on Facility B1
 d) Euro 465,588 on Facility B2
 e) Usd 393,670 (Euro 349,680 at historical exchange rate) on Facility TLB1  

 
At the end of 2017, the Facilities showed total outstanding amounts of Euro 74,937,684 as follows:
 

 a) Facility A1 of Euro 15,227,793, repayable in increasing six-monthly instalments with the last repayment due on 30 September
2020 (amount due within a year - Euro 4,153,034);

 

 b) Facility A2 of Euro 6,024,182, repayable in increasing six-monthly instalments with the last repayment due on 30 September
2020 (amount due within a year - Euro 1,642,959 );

 

 c) Facility B1 of Euro 28,979,965 subject to a bullet repayment due on 30 September 2021;
 d) Facility B2 of Euro 14,489,983 subject to a bullet repayment due on 30 September 2021;
 e) Facility B1 of Usd 12,251,763 subject to a bullet repayment on 30.09.2021 (Euro 10,215,762 at the reporEng date exchange

rate);
 

 
Interest is payable on Facilities A1, A2, B1 and B2 (Euro portion) at a variable rate equal to the variable Euro 3 month rate (Euribor 3m) plus a
fixed spread which differs for each tranche of the loans.
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Facility B1 (amount in US Dollars) is subject to interest at the variable Libor 3 month rate plus a fixed spread.
 

Movements on Bank Loans
 

Movements on bank borrowing and debt towards other lenders in 2016 are shown in the following table:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

     Non cash changes  
 2015 Repayments Debt for

interest of
previous

year

Total bank
borrowing

repayments

From long to
short term

Foreign
exchange

moviments

Amortising
Cost

2016

Bank loans    2,789,627 (3,579,974)  (3,579,974)    4,685,484        379,680          26,981    4,301,798
Bank borrowing to finance working
capital

   1,757,581     (355,464)      (355,464)       1,402,117

Bank borrowing to finance working
capital – interest

         38,153       (38,153)         24,228       (13,925)             24,227

Current portion    4,585,361 (3,973,591)         24,227 (3,949,363)    4,685,484        379,680          26,981    5,728,142
Bank loans 80,912,777     (166,216)      (166,216)   (4,685,484)                   -         681,361 76,742,439
Non-current portion 80,912,777     (166,216)                   -      (166,216)   (4,685,484)                   -         681,361 76,742,439

         
Total 85,498,138 (4,139,807)         24,227 (4,115,579)                   -         379,680        708,342 82,470,581

         
Financial expenses paid    (5,439,611)     
Lease installments paid        (919,223)     

         
Net cash used by borrowing activities   (10,474,413)     

         
 

The table above represents the cash and non-cash movements on Bank Loans during 2016.
 
Movements on bank borrowing and debt towards other lenders in 2017 are shown in the following table:

 
Values are expressed in Euro

     Non cash changes  
 2016 Repayments Debt for

interest of
previous year

Total bank
borrowing

repayments

From long to
short term

Foreign
exchange

moviments

Amortising 2017

Bank loans     4,301,798 (5,668,052)  (5,668,052)    7,909,841 (1,430,985)          41,750     5,154,351

Bank borrowing to finance working
capital

    1,402,117 (1,303,606)  (1,303,606)             98,511

Bank borrowing to finance working
capital – interest

         24,227        (24,227)         17,706         (6,521)             17,706

Current portion     5,728,142 (6,995,885)         17,706 (6,978,179)    7,909,841 (1,430,985)          41,750     5,270,568
Bank loans 76,742,439 (1,746,444)  (1,746,444) (7,909,841)                   -         642,032 67,728,187
Non-current portion 76,742,439 (1,746,444)                   -  (1,746,444) (7,909,841)                   -         642,032 67,728,187

         
Total 82,470,581 (8,742,329)         17,706 (8,724,623)                   -  (1,430,985)        683,782 72,998,755

         
Financial expenses paid    (5,063,930)     
Lease installments paid    (1,081,405)     

         
Net cash used by borrowing activities   (14,869,958)     

         
 

The table above represents the cash and non-cash movements on Bank Loans between 2016 and 2017.
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Bank borrowings to finance working capital

In 2017, the Group used addiEonal bank borrowing to finance working capital in the form of advances on invoices issued in Italy and in other
countries and advances on notes receivable from the banks. At the reporEng date, uElizaEon of these faciliEes totaled Euro 96,351 and they
were subject to market interest rates for financial instruments of this type.
 
At 31 December 2017, the Group also had payables of Euro 2,160 towards Factoring companies in relation to receivables factored with
recourse.

 
NOTE  26 – PAYABLES TO LEASING COMPANIES (current and non-current)

This caption is analyzed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Payables to leasing companies – current                          797,418                         988,407
Payables to leasing companies – non-current                       1,594,967                      1,518,762
    
Total                       2,392,385                      2,507,169
    

 
Movements during the reporting periods on payables to leasing companies are shown in the following tables:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2015 Changes Increase
(new lease)

Payments 2016

Payables to leasing companies – current 765,448 623,614 327,579 (919,223)          797,418
Payables to leasing companies – non-current 1,731,804 (669,899) 533,062 - 1,594,967
      
Total 2,497,252 (46,285) 860,641 (919,223) 2,392,385
      
 

Values are expressed in Euro
 2016 Changes Increase

(new lease)
Payments 2017

Payables to leasing companies – current          797,418          781,845          490,549    (1,081,405)          988,407
Payables to leasing companies – non-current      1,594,967       (803,659)          727,454                     -       1,518,762
      
Total      2,392,385          (21,814)      1,218,003    (1,081,405)      2,507,169
      

 
A reconciliaEon between the total of future minimum lease payments as of 31 December 2017 and their present value is presented here
after:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 Payments Not later than one
year

Later than one year
and not later than five

year
Payables to leasing companies                      2,507,169                         988,389                      1,518,780
Payables to leasing companies (NPV)                      2,405,015                         971,152                      1,433,863
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There are no future minimum lease payments later then five years.
 
For details of the maturity dates of future instalments included in “Payables to leasing companies (current and non-current)” and for all
additional information, see the Note containing “Information on financial risks” on the liquidity risk and the interest rate  risk.

 
NOTE  27 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (current a n d non-
current)

The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Hedging instruments (interest)                                     -                                     -  
Hedging instruments (exchange rate)                          861,259                                    -  
current                          861,259                                    -  
Hedging instruments (interest)                                     -                                     -  
Hedging instruments (exchange rate)                            43,966                                    -  
Non-current                            43,966                                    -  
    
Total                          905,225                                    -  
    
 

For more details of “Financial instruments and other financial liabiliEes (current and non-current)”, see the Note containing “InformaEon on
financial risks” on the exchange rate risk and the interest rate risk.

 
NOTE  28 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (non-current)

The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:
Values are expressed in Euro    
  2016 2017
Gross TFR/Employee severance indemnity                       4,819,197                      5,225,938
(Advances on TFR)                     (3,823,612)                    (4,230,920)
IAS effects on TFR                            84,587                           79,583
    
Total                       1,080,172                      1,074,601
    
 

“Advances on TFR/Employee Severance Indemnity” mainly includes receivables from the INPS Treasury Fund. IAS effects on the TFR provision
are determined in accordance with IAS 19.
“IAS effects on TFR” in the above tables include both the notional interest expense and the actuarial gain/loss.
 
The TFR enEtlement accruing in favor of employees unEl 31 December 2006 (effecEve date of pension/TFR reform) is considered a defined
benefit plan. IAS 19 requires the calculaEon of all liabiliEes towards employees at the date on which their employment relaEonship will
terminate and the discounting of this liability at the reporting date using actuarial methods.
 
The actuarial simulations have been performed using the projected unit credit method determining:
 

 ➢ the Past Service Liability;
 ➢ the Service Cost;
 ➢ changes in liabilities due to changes in the plan or events leading to a reduction in personnel (Curtailment/Settlement);  
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 ➢ the interest cost resulting from actuarial liabilities;
 ➢ Actuarial gains/losses
 
The valuation techniques were applied based on the following assumptions for 2017:
 ➢ Annual rate of increase in TFR: 2.625% (2.625% in 2016)
 ➢ Rate of TFR advances: 4.00% (4.00% in 2016)
 ➢ Employee turnover rate: 2.50 % (2.50% in 2016)
 ➢ Annual discount rate : 1.30% (1.31% in 2016)

(the 2017 discount rate was based on the IBoxx Eurozone Corporate AA index with a duraEon of 10+ years at 31 December 2017, in
line with the duration of the collectivity in question for Group TFR in 2017)
 

We note that external advisors have performed a specific sensiEvity analysis based on changes in the turnover rate (+1% and -1%) (+1% and -
1% in 2016), the inflaEon rate (+0.25% and -0.25%) (+0.25% and -0.25% in 2016) and the discount rate (+0.25% and - 0.25%) (+0.25% and -
0.25% in 2016). Based on the sensitivity analysis, the minimum liability is Euro 1,051,373 (Euro 1,054,908 in 2016) while the maximum
liability is Euro 1,098,689 (Euro 1,106,421 in 2016).
 
The analysis also determined that the average financial duration of the obligation is 10.0 years (10.1 in 2016).
 
It also determined esEmated future payments over the next five years: Euro 99,330 in year one (Euro 69,950 in 2016), Euro 64,131 in year
two (Euro 65,838 in 2016), Euro 61,257 in year three (Euro 62,913 in 2016), Euro 100,514 in year four (the highest payout expected) (Euro
60,094 in 2016) and Euro 52,788 in year five (the lowest payout expected) (Euro 93,652 in 2016).

 
NOTE  29 – PROVISIONS

The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Provisions for risks – short-term                          422,400                         342,806
    
Total                          422,400                         342,806
    
 

Provisions for risks are created in respect of probable liabiliEes. They relate to lay-off indemnity for agent, a labor lawsuit at the Parent
Company and other minors. Management believes it is probable that the liabilities will materialize in the short-term.

Values are expressed in Euro
Provisions for risks and charges    
Balance at 31-12-2015   1,008,314
Allocated   52,865
Utilized   (638,779)
Balance at 31-12-2016                           422,400
Allocated                             65,192
Utilized                         (144,786)
Balance at 31-12-2017                           342,806
    
 

The amount allocated to provisions for risks and charges in 2016 mainly regards a dispute arising during the year between the Parent
Company and third parEes; it involves a liability considered probable and esEmated at Euro 40,000. The remainder of the amount allocated
refers to risks regarding the Group’s agents.

Page 42 of 53
 



 
UElizaEon of provisions for risks in 2016 mainly refers to seOlement of a tax dispute over the 2004 tax year in relaEon to which the Parent
Company reached a seOlement with the Tax AuthoriEes and agreed to pay Euro 556,118. The remainder of the amount uElized referred to
the reversal of provisions made for contingent tax risks relating to exports (to Brazil); these risks no longer apply.
 
The amount allocated to provisions for risks and charges in 2017 mainly regards a dispute arising during the year between the Parent
Company and third parEes for a previous employment relaEonship; it involves a liability considered probable and esEmated at Euro
43,909.  The remainder of the amount allocated refers to risks regarding the Group’s agents.
 
UElizaEon of provisions for risks in 2017 mainly refers to seOlement of an agency relaEonship terminaEon and of another lawsuit arisen
during 2016 between the Parent Company and a third party.
 
Description of possible risks
 
The amount provided represents the best esEmate of probable liabiliEes, as calculated based on informaEon in the Group’s possession at the
reporEng date and taking account of subsequent events. No provision has been made for liabiliEes that are only possible and whose amount
or due date are highly uncertain. At present, the Group is unaware of any liabilities that are merely possible.
 
NOTE 30 – OTHER LIABILITIES (current)

The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Other current liabilities                          136,479                         292,945
Social/Pension contributions payable                          807,204                         841,659
Payables to employees – salaries                          862,637                      2,554,307
S/T deferred personnel costs – contributions                          474,034                         618,863
S/T deferred personnel costs – remuneration                       1,777,639                      2,286,956
    
Total                       4,057,993                      6,594,730
    
 

The capEon consists almost exclusively of liabiliEes for personnel costs (salaries, social contribuEon, short- term deferred expenses) and, to a
residual extent, in “Other current liabiliEes”, it includes liabiliEes towards the Directors for fees accruing but not yet paid, premiums due to
insurance companies and minor amounts due to third parties.

 
EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN

The Group has in place employee incentive plans that are classified as ‘cash settled instruments’ in terms of IFRS 2.

These instruments consist of bonuses to be recognized to the managers under the form of income from employment and the related contracts
have been in place since 2015. In 2017 the fair value of the total liability has been measured at Euro 1,813,167, that is the result of the product
between the investment of each employee and a “bonus multiplier”. The amount of the bonuses is calculated for 15 employees.

The amount of the bonuses is set between minimum and maximum amounts which are always subject to saEsfacEon of all condiEons imposed
by the contractual mechanism. Up to the reporEng period 2016 the fair value of the instruments had been valued by using a simplified
binomial method.
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The amount of the bonuses became more clearly determinable by means of the signed share purchase agreement for the sale of the enEre
share capital of Polyusus Lux IV Sarl (“Polyusus Lux”). The signature of the share purchase agreement represented the fulfillment of the
conditions to which the bonuses were subject to, at least in terms of most precise quantification. Although the bonuses’ payment is still subject
to the compleEon of the share purchase agreement (payment of purchase price and withdrawal of shares), the Directors consider the bonuses
as a probable liability, now clearly quanEfiable, on behalf of the Parent company. Income from employment and related social contribuEon are
the two parts composing the total amount of bonuses. The fair value of the liability related to bonuses is higher in 2017 compared to prior
years, during which the related quantification could have been based just on estimates.

See Note 10 for the impact into the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year 2016 and 2017.
 

NOTE 31 – TRADE PAYABLES

The amounts included in this caption are detailed in the following table:

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
Trade payables on purchases & services                    10,171,644                   17,945,815
    
Total                    10,171,644                   17,945,815
    

 
Similar comments apply to the trade payables balance as to the trade receivables balance above. The following table contains a breakdown of
“Trade payables” by geographical area:
 

Values are expressed in Euro
  2016 2017
ITALY                       9,705,611                   17,065,400
EUROPE                            80,318                         187,959
REST OF THE WORLD                          385,715                         692,456
    
Total                    10,171,644                   17,945,815
    
 

At 31.12.2017, trade payables (before advances and payments on account) were broken down by maturity date as follows:

Values are expressed in Euro
 Not Due <30 <60 <90 <120 <180 >180
Total trade Payables 15,504,591   2,426,444          8,454             907         1,441                13          3,965
        

 
Main part of overdue trade receivables within “30 days” are related to suppliers whose debt is overdue by three days as of December 31st 2017
and they have been paid in the first week of January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Risk management, derivatives and sensitivity analysis

 
NOTE 32 – INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS
 
Guarantees and commitments
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
Guarantees given                       9,216,961                      9,216,961
Third party assets held by the company                          208,827                         208,827
Total                       9,425,788                      9,425,788
    

 
Guarantees given at 31 December 2017 included:
 

a) A pledge of shares in Faster S.p.A. with a nominal value of Euro  9,189,405;
b) A pledge of shares in US company Faster Inc. Corp. with a nominal value of Euro 27,556. 

Third party assets held by the Group include molds belonging to customers.
 
The notional amounts of derivatives are reported below, paragraph “Interest rate risk management”.
 
Financial instruments relating to debt items

In accordance with the “Loan Facility from a pool of banks” agreement, the Parent Company has arranged the three “Interest rate cap”
agreements. These three agreements hedge the interest rate risk. For further details, see the later note on “Management of the interest rate
risk’.

 
Categories of financial instruments

 
Pursuant to IFRS 7, the following table contains a breakdown of financial instruments into the categories provided for by IAS 39:
 

Values are expressed in Euro
Financial assets  2016 2017
Financial instruments and other financial assets    
Financial instruments and other financial assets  6,864 1,354,103
Cash and cash equivalents    
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets at amortized cost

 8,732,695 18,943,308

Other non-current financial assets                          538,336                         708,718
Tax receivables                       1,176,454                      1,902,185
Other assets                          402,919                         404,858
Trade receivables                    14,179,187                   18,603,175
Non-current tax receivables                                     -                                     -  
Fair value through P&L    
Hedging agreements – interest                            14,993                                 204
Hedging agreements – exchange rates                                     -                       1,536,260
Fair value through comprehensive income    
Derivatives                                     -                                     -  
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Please consider that Hedging agreements – interest is divided between “Derivatives hedging interest - non current – Euro 8 thousands – in Other
non current Financial Assets” and “Derivatives hedging interest – current – Euro 7 thousands – in Financial instruments and Other current
Financial Assets”.
 
Values are expressed in Euro
Financial liabilities 2015 2016 2017
Fair value through P&L    
Hedging agreements – interest                                    -                                     -                                     -  
Hedging agreements – exchange rates                      1,377,509                         905,225                                    -  
Fair value through comprehensive income    
Derivatives    
Amortized cost    
Bank borrowing and debt to other lenders non-
current

                  80,912,777                   76,742,439                   67,728,187

Non-current payables to leasing companies                      1,731,804                      1,594,967                      1,518,762
Bank borrowing and debt to other lenders –
current

                     4,585,361                      5,728,142                      5,270,568

Current payables to leasing companies                         765,448                         797,418                         988,407
Current tax payables                         687,417                         980,362                      2,684,997
Other liabilities                      3,554,603                      4,057,993                      6,594,730
Trade payables                   12,327,762                   10,171,644                   17,945,815
 

Risk management policies
 
The Group is exposed to financial risks regarding its operating activities, mainly as follows:
 

 ➢ the credit risk, with particular reference to normal trade relations with customers;
 ➢ the market risk, in relation to volatility in raw materials prices, exchange rates and interest  rates;
 ➢ the liquidity risk which may result in the inability to raise the financial resources needed to guarantee the Group’s operating

activities;
 

 
The Parent Company coordinates acEviEes involving access to capital markets. It is the only Group company authorized to arrange derivaEve
instruments and also assesses and manages indirectly the financial risks relaEng to transactions carried out by the Group companies. The
Group seeks to minimize the effect of these risks by using derivative financial instruments.
 
The Group does not enter into any contracts for financial instruments for speculative purposes.
 
The following sections consider four types of risk:
 

 ➢ credit risk (trade receivables);
 ➢ liquidity risk;
 ➢ interest rate risk;
 ➢ exchange rate risk;
 

Credit risk management
 
The credit risk is the risk that a third party debtor will be unable to fulfil its obligations resulting in a financial loss for the Group.
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The Group classes the credit risk as limited because of:
 

 a) the low concentration of credit risk on any single debtor given the large number of customers;  
 b) the low concentration of the credit risk in geographical terms as customers are well spread over different countries;  
 c) the parEal concentraEon of the credit risk on groups with a global reputaEon and which are leaders in their respecEve segments

(solidity of customers on which certain risks are concentrated);
 

 d) the low percentage of bad debts suffered even though the global economic situation has been  unfavorable.  
 
In order to minimize the credit risk, the Group carefully monitors overdue receivables on a weekly basis. At 31 December 2016 and 2017,
gross trade receivables were analyzed by geographical area as follows:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

  2016 2017
ITALY                       1,892,196                      3,073,293
EUROPE                       5,218,354                      6,784,894
REST OF THE WORLD                       7,068,637                      8,744,988
    
Total                    14,179,187                   18,603,175
    
 

Total receivables from “countries at risk” represent around 0.22% of total gross trade receivables (countries at risk are those with a Standard &
Poor’s raEng of B- or lower: Barbados, Belarus, Belize, Burkina Faso, Congo, Egypt, El Salvador, Ghana, Iraq, Lebanon, Mongolia, Mozambique,
Ukraine, Venezuela). Trade receivables from Italian customers represent around 19.6% of gross trade receivables.
Italy is not considered a “country at risk”.

 
The two main customer groups account for around 29% of gross trade receivables but this is not considered a risk factor as they are global
leaders in their respective business segments.
 
Meanwhile, the remaining trade receivables are well spread across different groups and individual legal entities.

 
At 31 December 2017, trade receivables were analyzed by maturity date as follows:
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 Not Due <30 <60 <90 <120 <180 >180
Total trade receivables for sales of goods   14,592,758     1,173,155     1,053,946        558,397        213,463        243,952      767,504
        

 
Liquidity risk management

The Group has implemented appropriate liquidity risk management. This involves management of cash and short, medium and long-term
borrowing.
 
Liquidity risk management is achieved by maintaining adequate reserves of cash, credit facilities and cash, as well as by monitoring current
and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity dates of financial assets and liabilities.
 
In 2017, the Group used addiEonal lines of working capital finance as advance payments on export invoices and notes. At the reporting date,
these lines of finance were utilized in the amount of Euro 96,351 and are remunerated at market rates of interest for instruments of the
same type.
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The following table has been based on the undiscounted cash flows for financial liabiliEes from the first repayment  date. The table includes
cash flows for both the debt principal and interest at the various maturity dates.
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Bank borrowing and debt to other lenders      
Loan Facility A1         4,153,034         5,191,293        5,883,465                          -                    -  
Loan Facility A1 - Interest             532,973            387,617            205,921                         -                   -  
Loan Facility B1                         -                          -                          -       28,979,965                  -  
Loan Facility B1 – Interest        1,231,649        1,231,649        1,231,649            923,736                  -  
Loan Facility A2        1,642,959        2,053,698        2,327,525                         -                   -  
Loan Facility A2 – Interest            210,846            153,343              81,463                         -                   -  
Loan Facility B2                         -                          -                          -        14,489,983                  -  
Loan Facility B2 – Interest            615,824            615,824             615,824            461,868                  -  
Loan Facility TLB1 USD                        -                         -                          -       10,215,762                  -  
Loan Facility TLB1 USD - Interest            632,702            632,701            632,702            474,527                  -  
Loan  MPS                         -                         -                          -                          -                   -  
Loan MPS  - interest                         -                          -                          -                          -                    -  

Sub-tot cash flows        9,019,987      10,266,125      10,978,549      55,545,841                  -  
Payables to leasing companies      
Payables to leasing companies            988,389            720,497             388,920            284,668      124,685
Payables to leasing companies – interest              68,119              41,264              21,689              11,122          3,388

Sub-tot cash flows        1,056,508           761,761           410,609           295,790     128,073
      

Total cash flows      10,076,495      11,027,886      11,389,158      55,841,631     128,073
      

 
Financial liabilities will be repaid out of cash flows generated by operating activities.
At the end of 2014, the Group arranged a new bank loan, more details of which are provided in Note 25 ‘Bank borrowing and debt towards
other lenders’.
 
This new loan, as signed in September 2014 with a pool of banks, is subject to four covenants, all of which were respected at the reporEng
date. They refer to the following ratios:
 

 ➢ Net Finance Charges Cover: 6.74 (test > 4.00);
 ➢ Net Debt Cover: 1.94 (test < 3.10);
 ➢ Cash Flow cover: 2.56 (test > di 1) ;
 ➢ Capex: Euro 4.24 million (test < Euro 4.50 million).
 

The supplier risk is the possibility that a supplier causes and economic and funcEonal loss through failure to fulfil its contractual obligaEons.
The Group directly manages this risk in relaEon to suppliers considered strategic by following a careful procurement policy focusing on the
idenEficaEon of possible alternaEve sources of supply. Trade payables are generally seOled aNer 90-120 days. No interest is due on trade
payables. The Group manages its liquidity in such a way as to ensure that payables are settled on their due dates.
 
See Note 31 for a breakdown of the Group’s trade payables by geographical area and maturity date.
 
Translation risk management
 
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are exposed to the translaEon rate risk derived from the conversion into Euros of the financial
information of the subsidiary companies whose functional currency is not the Euro (translation risk).
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The exchange rate risk management policy is based on systematically hedging the exposure to which the Group companies are exposed, while
translation risk is not hedge.

The Group is exposed to the translaEon risk regarding the Yuan, US dollar, Rupee and Real as those are the funcEonal currencies of
subsidiaries as disclosed in the secEon ‘Scope of ConsolidaEon’ herein. Gains and losses in translaEon due to fluctuaEons in exchange rates
are recorded in other comprehensive income as ‘Exchange difference from translation of foreign operations.’

Exchange rate management

The main currency – other than the Euro – to which the Group is exposed is the US Dollar in relaEon to its trade receivables in the United
States (intercompany balances from the US subsidiary) and to bank loans denominated in USD.
 
In 2017, the Group’s Treasury Division used forward currency contracts to hedge 90% of the USD sales made during the year.
 
On a Group level, contracts in foreign currency are only used to hedge future currency transacEons while seeking to match the maturity date
of the hedging agreement with the “nominal” maturity date of the receivable.
 
The Group arranged a foreign currency loan in 2014 as described in more detail in Note 25 “Bank borrowing and debt towards other lenders”.
It has not entered into any contracts to hedge the exchange risk regarding said loan.
 

Exchange rate hedging agreements
 

The Group has entered into flexible forward contracts in currency to hedge the exchange rate risk resulEng from future transacEons in US
Dollars.
 
The following table shows exchange rate hedging agreements at the reporting date:
 

USD Euro equiv. Fair value Euro Average Rate Amount in USD
31/12/2017                     24,180,095                        1,536,260                              1.1456                     27,700,000
31/12/2016                     17,347,563                         (905,225)                              1.1241                     19,500,000
31/12/2015           38,701,748            (1,377,509)                   1.1395           44,100,000

 

Sensitivity analysis of exchange rate risk for foreign currency hedging agreements
 
The contracts for the forward sale of currency are measured with reference to the forward exchange rates listed on official markets and
implicit return curves in listed interest rates that match the contract maturity dates. The sensiEvity analysis shows the income statement
effect of a 10% increase (= weakening) or a 10% decrease (= strengthening) in the exchange rate.
 
PosiEve figures below indicate the posiEve fair value effect expected on the income statement where the local currency weakens by 10%
compared to the benchmark rate.
 
If the local currency strengthens by 10% against the other currency, there will be an opposite income statement effect and the amounts
shown below will be negative.
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Values are expressed in Euro
 2016 2017
 Increase of

10%
Decrease of

10%
Change Increase of

10%
Decrease of

10%
Change

Income Statement effect       
Forex hedging agreements     130,928 (920,762) 1,051,690    616,520      (4,716)       621,236
 

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to the interest rate risk as its debt includes variable rate loans linked to Euribor and Libor rate trends. This means it is
exposed to the interest rate risk in relation to future interest payments on the various loans.
 
The interest rate risk is hedged primarily by means of Interest Rate Cap agreements negoEated with leading banks with the aim of
transforming the interest rate from variable rate to fixed rate.
 
In accordance with the loan agreement for the “Loan Facility from Pool of Banks” signed in 2014, the Group has arranged three Interest Rate
Cap agreements (two in Euro and one in Usd) to hedge the interest rate risk. The hedging contract in Usd expired exactly at the reporEng
date 31 December 2017. The two remaining hedging contracts have a total notional value of Euro 46,000,000 at the reporting date.
 

31/12/2017 Cap Rate Rate Notional Euro Fair value Euro
Interest Rate Cap  - UNICREDIT Euro Cap rate 0,5% Euribor 360    23,000,000                  102  
Interest Rate Cap  - SOGEN Euro Cap rate 0,5% Euribor 360    23,000,000                  102  

      46,000,000                  204  
 
Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk regarding Interest Rate Cap agreements

A sensitivity analysis has been performed for the Interest Rate Cap only.
 
A 50bps increase / decrease in the forward rate curve at each benchmark date was assumed and the resulEng changes in fair value were
determined :
 
Values are expressed in Euro

 year 2018 5 yrs 2018-2021
 Rate up 0,5% Rate Down

0,5%
Maximum
range of
change

Rate up 0,5% Rate down
0,5%

Maximum
range of
change

Income Statement effect       
Interest Rate Cap         230,000                     -          230,000         438,182                     -          438,182

 
 

Given the parEcular interest rate situaEon during the period and the hedging instruments arranged by the Group, the simulaEons were
actually performed based on the following intervals:
 

 ➢ The reducEon in the Euribor interest rate based on the “0.5% rate decrease” scenario was actually performed using 0.0% as the
potential minimum rate, starting from the Euribor rate of -0.33%;

 

 ➢ The increase in the Euribor interest rate based on the “0.5% rate increase” scenario was actually performed using 0.5% as the
maximum interest rate (covered by the Interest Rate Cap), commencing from the Euribor rate of  -0.33%;

 

 
The analysis shows that there is a low risk of any positive or negative fluctuation in the fair value of the interest rate hedging instruments.
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Sensitivity analysis of variable rate financial payables

The following sensitivity analysis was performed on the variable rate debt in place at 31 December 2017.
 
The analysis was performed considered the average level of debt during the year net of hedges going forward. A 50bps increase or decrease
is used for the interest rate risk reports provided to management and represents the possible and reasonable variation in interest rates with
all other variables remaining constant. The 50bps increase and decrease shown in the table may be considered reasonable as the rate can
never decrease to less than zero.
 
The analysis going forward covers the first year aNer the reporEng period i.e. 2018 and the enEre five-year period 2018-2022 of cash flows
(see table in liquidity risk section):
 

Values are expressed in Euro
 year 2018 5 yrs 2018-2021
 Rate up 0,5% Rate Down

0,5%
Maximum
range of
change

Rate up 0,5% Rate down
0,5%

Maximum
range of
change

Income Statement effect (gross)       
Financial cost of variable rate debt         346,635         (63,615)         410,249      1,220,543      (218,337)      1,438,880
Income Statement effect (after
hedging)

      

Financial cost of variable rate debt         116,635         (63,615)         180,249         782,361      (218,337)      1,000,698
 

Given the parEcular interest rate situaEon during the period and the hedging instruments arranged by the Group, the simulaEons were
actually performed based on the following intervals:
 

 ➢ The reducEon in the Euribor interest rate based on the “0.5% rate decrease” scenario was actually performed using 0.0% as the
potential minimum rate, starting from the Euribor rate of -0.33%;

 

 ➢ The decrease in the Libor interest rate based on the “0.5% rate decrease” scenario was actually performed using 1.6934% as the
minimum interest rate, starting from the Libor rate of 1.1934%;

 

 ➢ The increase in the Euribor interest rate based on the “0.5% rate increase” scenario was actually performed using 0.5% as the
maximum interest rate (covered by the Interest Rate Cap), commencing from the Euribor rate of  -0.33%;

 

 ➢ The increase in the Libor interest rate based on the “0.5% rate increase” scenario was performed starEng from the Libor rate of
1.6934% and arriving at a presumed rate of 2.1934% as the maximum rate covered by the Interest Rate Cap is 1.50%.

 

 
The analysis shows that there is a low risk of a negative income statement effect due to an increase in interest rates as most financial
payables/debt are hedged at a rate of Euribor 0.5%. The parEcular financial situaEon with interest rates close to zero only produces a modest
favorable income statement effect in case of a rate reduction as rates cannot, by contract, fall below 0.0%.
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Hierarchical levels of fair value measurement
IFRS 13 requires that financial instruments stated at fair value in the financial statements be classified based on a hierarchy with three levels
that reflect the level of input used in determining the fair value. The following levels must be shown:
 

 ➢ Level 1 – quoted prices on an active market for the asset or liability being measured;
 ➢ Level 2 – inputs other than the quoted prices per level 1 that may be observed directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)

on the market;
 

 ➢ Level 3 – inputs based on observable market data
 

The following table shows assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, by hierarchical level of
fair value measurement (fair value is the differenEal between the noEonal amount and the measurement method adopted for assets and
liabilities)
 

Values are expressed in Euro    
 2015 2016 2017
 Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Forex hedging agreements                         LEVEL 2                       (905,225)                      1,536,260
Interest Rate Cap                                         LEVEL 2                           14,994                                 204
    
    
 

NOTE 33 – EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
 

On 18 February 2018, the board of directors of Polyusus Lux (100% owner of Faster S.p.A) signed a share purchase agreement for the sale of
the enEre share capital of Polyusus Lux from the Polyusus Lux shareholders to Sun Hydraulics CorporaEon, a world leader company for
engineering and production of hydraulic products and electronic solutions.
 
The agreement was completed (executed) on 5 April 2018.
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Exhibit 99.2
 

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying unaudited pro forma combined financial statements of Sun Hydraulics Corporation (“Sun” or the “Company”) are
presented to illustrate the estimated effects of the acquisition of Polyusus Lux IV S.à.r.l (“Polyusus”), the owner of 100% of the share
capital of Faster S.p.A. (“Faster”), on April 5, 2018 (the “acquisition”) and the related financing transactions on the historical financial
position and results of operations of the Company.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements have been derived from the Company’s historical audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 30, 2017 and the audited consolidated financial statements of Faster as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017.  The unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the year ended December 30, 2017 is
presented as if the acquisition was completed on January 1, 2017.  The unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet at December 30, 2017
gives effect to the acquisition as if it was completed on December 30, 2017. 

Polyusus serves as a holding company and has no operations and, except for the investment in Faster, insignificant assets and
liabilities.  Therefore Polyusus has not been included in these unaudited pro forma combined financial statements.

The assumptions and estimates underlying the unaudited adjustments to the pro forma combined financial statements are described in the
accompanying notes, which should be read together with the pro forma combined financial statements.  The unaudited pro forma combined
financial statements should be read together with the Company’s historical consolidated financial statements, which are included in the
Company’s latest annual report on Form 10-K, and the historical consolidated financial statements of Faster presented in exhibit 99.1 to this
Form 8-K/A.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements are presented for illustrative purposes only, in accordance with Article 11 of
Regulation S-X, and are not indicative of the results of operations that would have been realized had the acquisition actually been
completed on the dates indicated, nor are they indicative of the Company’s future financial position or operating results.
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Sun Hydraulics Corporation
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet
As of December 30, 2017
(in thousands)
              Preliminary            
              Purchase    Other       
  Sun       Acquisition   Price    Pro Forma       
  Hydraulics   Faster   Financing   Allocation  Note  Adjustments  Note  Pro Forma  
  Historical   Historical   (Note 3)   (Note 4)  Ref  (Note 5)  Ref  Combined  
Assets                           
Current assets:                           

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 63,882   $ 22,693   $ 480,018   $ (532,408 )   $ (4,103 ) 5(a)  $ 30,082  
Restricted cash   40    —    —    —     —     40  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts   37,503    22,286    —    —     —     59,789  
Inventories, net   41,545    29,748    —    5,287  4(a)   —     76,580  
Income taxes receivable   —    449    —    —     —     449  
Other current assets   3,806    4,480    —    —     —     8,286  
Total current assets   146,776    79,656    480,018    (527,121 )    (4,103 )    175,226  

Property, plant and equipment, net   91,931    12,538    —    7,340  4(b)   —     111,809  
Deferred income taxes   4,654    4,374    —    —     —     9,028  
Goodwill   108,869    143,226    —    104,949  4(c)   —     357,044  
Other intangibles, net   104,131    72,312    —    174,059  4(c)   —     350,502  
Other assets   3,405    824    552    —     —     4,781  

Total assets  $ 459,766   $ 312,930   $ 480,570   $ (240,773 )   $ (4,103 )   $ 1,008,390  
Liabilities and shareholders' equity                           
Current liabilities:                           

Accounts payable  $ 15,469   $ 22,018   $ —   $ —    $ —    $ 37,487  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   8,977    10,603    —    —     —     19,580  
Current portion of contingent
consideration   17,102    —    —    —     —     17,102  
Current portion of long-term debt   —    6,293    4,755    —     (6,293 ) 5(b)   4,755  
Dividends payable   2,437    —    —    —     —     2,437  
Income taxes payable   1,878    2,130    —    —     —     4,008  
Total current liabilities   45,863    41,044    4,755    —     (6,293 )    85,369  

Revolving line of credit   116,000    —    142,000    —     —     258,000  
Contingent consideration, less current
portion   16,780    —    —    —     —     16,780  
Long-term debt, net of current portion   —    81,135    94,022    —     (81,135 ) 5(b)   94,022  
Deferred income taxes   2,068    20,593    —    —     —     22,661  
Other noncurrent liabilities   6,382    3,107    —    —     —     9,489  

Total liabilities   187,093    145,879    240,777    —     (87,428 )    486,321  
Total shareholders' equity   272,673    167,051    239,793    (240,773 )    83,325     522,069  

Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity  $ 459,766   $ 312,930   $ 480,570   $ (240,773 )   $ (4,103 )   $ 1,008,390

 
See accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements.
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Sun Hydraulics Corporation
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations
For the year ended December 30, 2017
(in thousands, except per share data)
 
              Preliminary            
              Purchase    Other       
  Sun       Acquisition   Price    Pro Forma       
  Hydraulics   Faster   Financing   Allocation  Note  Adjustments  Note  Pro Forma  
  Historical   Historical   (Note 3)   (Note 4)  Ref  (Note 5)  Ref  Combined  
Net sales  $ 342,839   $ 120,629   $ —   $ —    $ —    $ 463,468  
Cost of sales   206,314    73,704    —    1,811  4(b)   —     281,829  
Gross profit   136,525    46,925    —    (1,811 )    —     181,639  
Selling, engineering and
administrative expenses   65,580    19,425    —    —     (2,495 ) 5(a)   82,510  
Restructuring charges   1,031    —    —    —     —     1,031  
Amortization of intangible assets   8,423    6,598    —    3,601  4(c)   —     18,622  
Operating income   61,491    20,902    —    (5,412 )    2,495     79,476  
Interest expense (income), net   3,781    5,726    10,950    —     (4,152 ) 5(b)   16,305  
Foreign currency transaction gain, net   (52 )   (2,750 )   —    —     —     (2,802 )
Miscellaneous expense, net   742    (112 )   —    —     —     630  
Change in fair value of contingent
consideration   9,476    —    —    —     —     9,476  
Income before income taxes   47,544    18,038    (10,950 )   (5,412 )    6,647     55,867  
Income tax provision   15,986    5,601    (3,833 )   (1,510 ) 4(d)   1,900  5(c)   18,144  
Net income  $ 31,558   $ 12,437   $ (7,117 )  $ (3,902 )   $ 4,747    $ 37,723  
Basic and diluted net income per
common share  $ 1.17                     $ 1.20  
Basic and diluted weighted average
shares outstanding   27,031        4,400              31,431
 
See accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements.
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SUN HYDRAULICS CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousands)

Note 1 — Basis of presentation

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements have been derived from the Company’s historical audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 30, 2017 and the audited consolidated financial statements of Faster as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017.  

The audited consolidated financial statements of Faster as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017 were prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and were presented in
euros. Management is still evaluating Faster’s accounting policies and the effects of conversion to U.S generally accepted accounting
principles (“U.S. GAAP”). Based on management’s preliminary analysis there were no adjustments necessary to convert the IFRS financial
statements into U.S. GAAP. Certain reclassifications among financial statement line items were necessary to conform Faster’s financial
information to Sun’s; see Note 2. The historical financial information was translated from euros to U.S. dollars using the following
historical rates: average exchange rate for the year ended December 31, 2017 of approximately 1.13 and period end exchange rate as of
December 31, 2017 of approximately 1.20.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and pursuant to the rules and regulations of SEC Regulation S-X, and present the pro forma financial position and
results of operations of the combined companies after giving effect to the acquisition and related financing transactions.

The historical consolidated financial statements have been adjusted in the pro forma combined financial statements to give effect to pro
forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the business combination, (2) factually supportable and (3) with respect to the pro forma
combined statements of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results following the business combination.

The business combination was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinations.  The pro forma combined financial information sets forth the preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the acquisition
based upon the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition using available
information.  The preliminary purchase price allocation may be adjusted as a result of the finalization of the purchase price accounting.

The combined pro forma financial information does not reflect the realization of any expected cost savings or other synergies from the
acquisition of Faster as a result of restructuring activities and other planned cost savings initiatives following the completion of the business
combination.

Note 2 — Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to Faster’s historical financial information to conform to Sun’s financial statement presentation.
The following table summarizes the significant reclassifications:

Item reclassified  Amount  Location on Faster's financial statements
Location on unaudited pro forma financial

statements
Balance sheet       

Income taxes receivable  $ 449  Tax receivables Income taxes receivable
Other tax related receivables   1,829  Tax receivables Other current assets
Advance payments to vendors   519  Trade payables Other current assets
Purchased software   1,048  Other intangible assets Property, plant and equipment, net
Income taxes payable   2,130  Tax payables Income taxes payable
Other tax related payables   1,086  Tax payables Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Statement of Operations       

Amortization of intangible assets  $ 6,598  Cost of goods sold - depreciation,
amortization and write downs Amortization of intangible assets

Certain shipping and indirect
production costs   8,272  Distribution costs Cost of sales

Currency derivative gains and
losses   2,734  Other financial income (-) and expenses

(+) Foreign currency transaction gain, net
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Note 3 — Acquisition Financing

Sun completed the acquisition for $532,408 in cash. The acquisition was financed with proceeds from the Company’s registered public
offering and borrowings on its credit facility. On February 6, 2018, Sun sold 4,400 shares of common stock at a public offering price of
$57.50 per share. Net proceeds from the offering totaled $239,793, of which $116,000 was used to repay the outstanding debt under the
existing credit facility. On April 1, 2018, the Company amended its credit facility to increase the revolving line of credit to an aggregate
maximum principal amount of $400,000 and added a term loan credit facility of $100,000. Debt issuance costs of $1,775 were incurred in
relation to the amendment. Concurrent with the closing of the acquisition the Company borrowed $100,000 on the term loan and $258,000
on the revolving credit facility.

The following table presents the net increase to interest expense resulting from the borrowings on our credit facility used to finance the
acquisition of Faster and the amortization of related debt issuance cost:
 
Interest expense on borrowings used to finance Faster acquisition  $ 14,247  
Amortization of related debt issuance costs   355  
Historical interest expense on debt repaid with proceeds from public offering   (3,652 )
Pro forma adjustment  $ 10,950

The interest rate assumed for purposes of preparing these pro forma financial statements is 4.0%. This rate comprises the one-month
LIBOR rate of 2.0% as of June 2018, plus certain margins specified in the credit facility agreement.  A 1/8% increase or decrease in interest
rates would result in a change in interest expense of approximately $445 for the year ended December 30, 2017.

The income tax effect of the acquisition financing adjustments are calculated based on Sun’s U.S. statutory tax rate in effect in 2017 (35%).

Note 4 — Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation

The following table presents the preliminary allocation of the purchase consideration for the transaction as of the acquisition date:

 
Cash  $ 5,264  
Accounts receivable   24,638  
Inventories   35,882  
Property, plant and equipment   20,980  
Identifiable intangible assets   246,371  
Goodwill   248,175  
Other assets   11,111  

Total assets acquired   592,421  
Accounts payable   18,668  
Accrued expenses   11,740  
Deferred income taxes   20,232  
Other liabilities   9,373  

Total liabilities assumed   60,013  
Fair value of net assets acquired  $ 532,408

The purchase price allocation and related pro forma adjustments are based on our preliminary estimates and assumptions that are subject to
change. The following adjustments have been reflected in the unaudited pro forma combined financial information:

4(a) Represents the estimated adjustment to step up Faster’s finished goods and work in process inventory to fair value. After the
acquisition, the step-up in inventory fair value will increase cost of sales over approximately three months as the inventory is sold. This
increase is not reflected in the pro forma combined statements of operations as it does not have a continuing impact.

4(b) Represents the estimated fair value adjustment to Faster's property, plant and equipment based on the preliminary fair va lue
estimate and the related estimated increase in depreciation expense. The estimated useful lives of the assets range from one to fourteen
years.  The following table summarizes the changes in the estimated depreciation expense:
 

Estimated depreciation expense  $ 5,122  
Historical depreciation expense   (3,311 )
Pro forma adjustment  $ 1,811
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4(c) Represents the adjustments to remove Faster’s historical goodwill, record goodwill associated with the acquisition, record the
estimated fair value of the acquired identifiable intangibles assets and the related estimated increase in amortization expense. The
following table summarizes the estimated fair values of Faster’s identifiable intangible assets, their estimated useful lives and the estimated
amortization for each period presented:

          Year Ended  
      Estimated   December 30, 2017  
  Estimated Fair Value   Useful life (years)   Amortization Expense  

Trade Name  $ 25,740   18   $ 1,430  
Customer Relationships   201,019   26    7,732  
Technology   13,483   13    1,037  
Sales Order Backlog   6,129    0.4    6,129  
  $ 246,371       $ 16,328  
             
Historical amortization expense           (6,598 )
Sales order backlog amortization *           (6,129 )
Pro forma adjustment          $ 3,601

* The amortization expense related to the sales order backlog intangible asset was not included in the pro forma adjustments as it will not
have a continuing impact on the Company’s results of operations.

These preliminary estimates of fair value and estimated useful lives will likely differ from final amounts the Company will calculate after
completing the detailed valuation analysis, and the difference could have a material effect on the accompanying unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial statements.

4(d) The income tax effect of the preliminary purchase price allocation adjustments is calculated based on Faster’s Italian statutory
tax rate in effect in 2017 (27.9%).

Note 5 — Other Pro Forma Adjustments

The pro forma adjustments are based on our preliminary estimates and assumptions that are subject to change. The following adjustments
have been reflected in the unaudited pro forma combined financial information:

5(a) Adjustments represent the payment of estimated transaction costs incurred in 2018 in connection with the acquisition totaling
$4,103 and the elimination of non-recurring transaction costs incurred by Sun and Faster during the year ended December 30, 2017 that are
directly related to the acquisition totaling $2,495.

5(b) Represents the effects of extinguishing Faster’s outstanding debt upon completion of the acquisition.

5(c) The income tax effect of the other pro forma adjustments are calculated based on S un’s U.S. and Faster’s Italian statutory tax
rates in effect in 2017 of 35% and 27.9%, respectively.
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